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P R O C E E D I N G S  

(Transcript follows in sequence from Volume 2.) 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Ms. Brownless, you may 

continue. 

I - - - - -  

JOHN B. CRISP 

resumed the stand and testified as follows: 

CONTINUED CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q Did you specifically - -  other than the 

reference you have made to - -  

A I'm sorry, where are you in the document? 

Q I'm on Page 11, Paragraph 4. 

A Of direct? 

Q No, of your RFP document. 

A Okay. Page 11, Paragraph 4. 

Q Yes, sir. Other than the reference you made to 

using production costing models, costing methods and other 

models, did you indicate to your potential bidders that 

you would be using PROSCREEN, PROMOD, PROSYM specifically? 

A We did not indicate to the bidders the specific 

models we would be utilizing. 

Q Thank you. I want to turn now to Attachment D 

on Page 26 of that same RFP. 

A I'm there. 
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Q Thank you. The data that is provided here, was 

that the data that you actually used in your computer 

modeling to produce your PWRR analyses? 

A That's correct. 

Q So it was exactly this data? 

A Yes, it was. 

Q Okay. When I asked you this question at your 

deposition I believe you indicated that it was similar 

data, but not exactly this data. Have you had an 

opportunity to review that? 

A I have gone back to check the data, yes. 

Q Okay. And it is absolutely what is shown here? 

A To the best of my knowledge it is this data. 

Q Okay. How was the data shown here developed? 

A The information from each one of these itemized 

numbers, Numbers 1 through 1 3 ,  was developed from all of 

the different sources, the experts in each one of their 

fields. For instance, estimated annual fixed O&M is 2 . 2  

nillion in ' 0 3  dollars; the estimated variable O&M is 1.11 

?er megawatt hour. That would have come from operational 

zxperts. Levelized revenue requirements, annual value of 

iieferral would have come from the financial experts. The 

zstimated total direct cost, 197.6 million would have come 

Erom our construction folks. 

Q Was the heat rate that is shown here provided by 
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the manufacturer, Siemens-Westinghouse, or is that a heat 

rate that was developed internally? 

A That is a nominal heat rate. And to the best my 

knowledge that would have been provided by 

Siemens-Westinghouse. 

Q And that would have been the manufacturer's heat 

rate associated with the 501F unit? 

A Yes. And I might clarify that that is a nominal 

heat rate. Or, excuse me, that is a heat rate at maximum 

zapacity, okay. Do you understand the difference? 

Q Please explain. 

A The heat rate at maximum capacity is the most 

3f f icient heat rate. 

Q So to the extent that the unit operated at 130 

negawatts, the heat rate would be significantly - -  or 

zould be higher than that? 

A At minimum load the heat rate would be less 

?fficient or higher than that. 

Q Okay, thank you. Before we leave the bid 

locument, because you could have negotiated with a bidder 

\rho passed the initial screening, could the bid that 

iltimately succeeded have been substantially different 

:han the bid that was originally proposed in that bidder's 

CFP? 

A Substantially different? 
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Q Different. 

MR. SASSO: Are you changing the question? Mr. 

Chairman, is she rephrasing the question? 

MS. BROWNLESS: I will be glad to restate it. I 

will restate the question. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q To the extent that a bidder was successful in 

passing the initially screening and negotiating with 

Florida Power Corporation, could the winning proposal have 

been different than that stated in the RFP? 

A I think that the best way to answer your 

question accurately is to explain that once you go into a 

short list process and you start negotiating details, for 

instance, if you offer me one price, and you want to offer 

ne another price, let's say you want to raise the price in 

the negotiation process, then I may get a benefit on a 

lower O&M. So there is a chance for some difference and 

some give and take in that negotiation process. 

Now, does it ultimately wind up with a better 

Jalue for me? No, there is no guarantee to that. The 

3ive and take process in negotiations in a short list 

irocedure on many occasions the two parties trying to 

iegotiate ultimately can fall out and agree to not agree 

10 go forward with that contract on that basis. 

Q Sure. But the bottom line here is that certain 
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terms and conditions could, in fact, have been different 

originally as a result of this negotiation than what was 

proposed by that bidder, yes or no? 

A Yes. 

Q Thank you. 

A I would have to suggest that it shc 

proposed in the first place. 

Id ha e been 

MS. BROWNLESS: We would ask that that be 

stricken, the answer. The question was asked, the 

question was answered. That the following portion be 

stricken, the last little bit. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I thought that he was 

explaining his answer. But to move on we will strike that 

last portion. I don't think it was that important. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q I want to make sure, Mr. Crisp, that I 

understand the PWRR analyses that were done in order to 

compare the Hines Unit 2 unit with, in specific, the Panda 

bid. And I want to make sure I understand the computer 

nodeling methodology that was actually used. 

You took Panda's bid and did what with it in 

terms of input into the model that was used? 

A When we originally received the Panda bid at 

first step there were several stages of give and take 
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between Florida Power Corporation and Panda. That was 

caused because not all of the questions in our request for 

proposal and not all of the information was provided in 

the initial proposal, so the first step was to clarify and 

get all of the information in from Panda that we needed to 

accurately evaluate their proposal. 

The next step was because Panda initially only 

proposed 250 megawatts, we went back to Panda and said 

zould you please provide us with another option for 

mother 250 megawatt block, so we could have the total of 

500  megawatts so that we could - -  since that fit our need. 

Panda provided us with a second 250-megawatt block, but it 

Gas priced much higher than the first 250-megawatt block. 

\Tow what we had was two blocks of contracts, if you will. 

2nd let's call them Panda 1 and Panda 2. And each one, 

?anda 1 and Panda 2 had an option where you could take 

?ither block for two years, and then you could extend it 

for a third year, or a fourth year, or a fifth year. 

NOW, once we had all of the information on those 

lids and all the information on the numbers, we did an 

.nitial screening process of the Panda proposal to put it 

.n its best light. We've got a lot of options here to 

.ook at just in the fact that we have got two separate 

lower blocks. So what we had to do was find the most 

)ptimum solution for our ratepayers using those two 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



186 

1 

2 

0 3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

15 

16 

1 7  

18 

19 

2 0  

21 

22 

23 

24 
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So we went through a screening analysis and what 

resulted was a recommendation from the models, the lowest 

cost production using a combination of Panda, the P1 and 

P2 blocks was a 500-megawatt contract with Panda for two 

years. 

Q Okay. Just so that I understand how the data 

was modeled, you ran a PROSCREEN computer model, is that 

correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q And the PROSCREEN computer model is the model 

that Florida Power Corporation uses in its ten-year site 

plans to determine least-cost options, is that correct? 

A We used the PROSCREEN module, which includes the 

PROVIEW and the DSVIEW components to sport the IRP 

9rocess. 

Q Okay. But it is a 

trying to get at? 

A It is a consistent 

it for two different reasons 

Q I appreciate that. 

consistent model is what I'm 

model, but you are applying 

This is not a trick 

pestion. You have the PROSCREEN modeling technology at 

?ower Corp and you routinely use it to examine your own 

internal options, is that correct? 

A Yes. And I apologize, I wasn't trying to be 
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trite or anything, I was just trying to help understand. 

There are subtleties to the models that are very confusing 

at times. 

Q Okay. In this PROSCREEN model, what is the time 

limit over which the Panda option was modeled? 

A The Panda model - -  or, excuse me, the model 

application for Panda was modeled over a full 25-year time 

frame . 

Q Okay, let me stop you there. Was the Hines Unit 

2 unit modeled over the same 25-year time frame? 

A Yes, it was. 

Q And I assume Bidder B was also modeled over that 

same time frame? 

A Yes, it was. 

Q Okay. The data that Panda provided to you, the 

specific costing data, if I hear your testimony correctly, 

was divided in two blocks of 250 megawatts each, is that 

correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q The first block would have been priced at $6.75 

3 kilowatt month, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q And the second 250 block would have been priced 

st $9.10 a kilowatt month? 

A That's correct. 
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Q Okay. You took these blocks and modeled them so 

that Panda's numbers were used for the first five years of 

this 25-year period, is that correct? 

A The initial screening process took a look at 

those blocks and said the best possible solution, the best 

cost solution - -  do you remember where you said the second 

block was at $9.10 kW a month? 

Q Yes, sir. 

A What happened there is that the best possible 

solution for cost was a 500-megawatt block for Panda for 

two years. So then at the end of two years our load 

didn't go away, it is still there. As counselor was 

explaining, we have a load that continues to grow for the 

next 25 years, or in our ten-year site plan for the next 

ten years. NOW, we have to fill the load. 

So, at the end of that optimal Panda solution, 

which was two years at 500 megawatts, the model selected 

the best possible solution to go in and fill in for the 

remainder of that period of time. And it just so happens 

that was a combined cycle unit. 

Q Okay. So now obviously I didn't understand this 

What you are telling me at your deposition the other day. 

is that - -  I understood - -  let me tell you what I 

understood at your deposition, so I can clarify this. 

I understood at your deposition that for the 
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first five years of this 25-year run you took the pricing 

supplied by Panda and put Panda's pricing parameters 

directly into the model recognizing that one block was 

more expensive than the second. What I hear you say today 

is that you modeled a 500-megawatt block for two years, is 

that - -  

A I apologize if I have confused the matter, but I 

thought I explained it pretty clearly. You had two 

separate blocks. You have two options. One is 250 

megawatts, one is 250 megawatts. You load those two in, 

you also load in the fact that you have got options for a 

three-year, four-year, and five-year extension on each one 

3f those blocks. The model goes through and optimizes and 

says, okay, this is the best possible solution for Panda, 

2kay. And that best possible solution for Panda was the 

500 megawatts taken for two years and then a combined 

Zycle following that. 

Q So you did not force Panda's pricing for the 

first five years? 

A Could you explain forced pricing? 

Q Sure. In the sense that you did not take the 

Iirst five years and tell the model for the first five 

rears 250 megawatts will be priced at this, and 250 

negawatts will be priced at 9.10, and used Panda's numbers 

ior the first five years and then let the model optimize 
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the system from year 6 through year 25? 

A That is what we did. We listed the price for 

the 250 megawatts block here, the price for the 250 block 

here, and the prices, all the variable O&M prices 

associated with each one of those blocks. 

Q As if those units would be actually operational 

on your system? 

A As if they were even separate units. We didn't 

want to exclude any possible potential combination of 

Panda offerings. We wanted to give all of the offerings a 

good look. We wanted to make sure that the combinations 

or permutations were all sorted out so that Panda got the 

optimal shot, the best possible shot. 

Q Let me tell you what is confusing me here. I 

understood - -  what you have just said is what I understood 

from the deposition, okay. That Panda's pricing was used 

for year one through six and that from years six through 

25 the model optimized the units that would be added. 

That is what I understood. I am confused because you keep 

saying the best possible thing would have been a 

500-megawatt block for two years as opposed to forcing 

Panda's 250-megawatt blocks for the first five years. Do 

you understand my confusion here? 

MR. SASSO: Chairman Jacobs, I'm going to have 

to object at this point. Ms. Brownless keeps articulating 
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her own confusion as some type of predicate for questions. 

And I'm afraid the record is being hopelessly confused 

because she is not asking questions, she is just stating 

her state of mind and asking Mr. Crisp to react. I think 

he has explained the same thing three or four times now, 

and I don't mind direct questions about what he did and 

how he did it, but I am concerned about the predicate for 

these questions. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Ms. Brownless. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Sure, thank you. Okay. Let me 

make sure I understand what happened from year six to year 

25. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Well, I was giving you an 

opportunity to respond to Mr. Sasso. 

MS. BROWNLESS: If Mr. Sasso believes that this 

question has been asked and answered, and that is the 

gravamen of his objection, then I will move on to another 

question. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: That works. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Now you both have me really 

confused and you don't want a Commissioner to be confused 

So may I ask a could of questions, Chairman Jacobs? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: What did you mean by the 

better option would have been two 500 blocks for two 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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years? 

THE WITNESS: Two 250-megawatt blocks. Why 

don't I step back for just a moment. In the initial 

offering from Panda we got an offering for 250 megawatts 

and it was for two years. And then they gave us an option 

to extend for another year for year three, and then 

another option to extend for a year four, and an option to 

extend for a year five. 

In discussions with Panda we indicated that we 

needed a full 500 megawatts. Panda offered another block, 

2nd it was priced differently. It was another block the 

same size, 250 megawatts, so that we ultimately had a 

clumulative total of 500 megawatts worth of bids from 

?anda. But it was in two separate offerings at two 

separate pricings. So we didn't want - -  on the one hand 

Be didn't want to penalize the offering that was cheaper, 

:he 250-megawatt block that was cheaper. 

So what me did was we let the model, we entered 

it as two separate generating units, if you will, or two 

separate options. And we told the model here are the 

lifferent prices for each one of the different options and 

iere are their length of terms. And what happens in the 

nodel is it runs a generation stack for total production 

:osts for a fleet. And it goes through and it selects the 

Iptimum solution that comes up with the lowest possible 
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production cost for the entire fleet. And when it does 

that it looks at those and compares those two units and 

what the optimum solution for that comparison was was to 

combine those two options together for one 500-megawatt 

block and then only take it, though, for two years. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q And so really the model was selecting a unit 

from year 3 through year 25, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I'm sorry, my confusion. 

I thought you said it was five years. 

MS. BROWNLESS: My understanding was it for five 

years. But Mr. Crisp has clarified today that it was, in 

fact, from year 3 through year 25, correct? 

THE WITNESS: That's correct. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Thank you. 

3Y MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q The unit that the model selected from year 3 

Ihrough year 25, was what type of unit? 

A It was a Westinghouse 501F combined cycle unit 

similar to the existing proposed Hines 2 and Hines 3 

Inits. Because we already have Hines 1, it makes sense 

from a production costing methodology to combine and have 

nultiple units of the same type so you save money on 
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spares and you save money on the different systems that 

control the units and support the units. 

Q Thank you. I would like to hand out some 

exhibits I would like to talk about. 

A Thank you. 

MS. BROWNLESS: And I want the record to reflect 

that the handwriting on these exhibits is not that of Mr. 

Crisp or any notations of Florida Power Corporation. 

Have you had an opportunity to look at these, 

Mr. Sasso? 

MR. SASSO: I'm looking at it now, just trying 

to verify that we have removed Bidder B material. 

Can I ask whether we have, in fact, removed 

that? 

MS. BROWNLESS: There is no Bidder B stuff in 

here, but go ahead and make sure. Certainly it was not my 

intent to put it in. 

MR. SASSO: Based on a quick review, it appears 

to be nonconfidential. 

MS. BROWNLESS: And I would ask that with regard 

to the information in here relative to Hines Unit 2, 

Dkay for us to discuss that in the open? 

MR. SASSO: Yes. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

is it 



1 

a 3 

4 

5 

b 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

15 

16 

1 7  

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

2 3  

24 

195 

Q Mr. Crisp, I have provided you with some 

documents, and they are variously labelled as 19, 20, 21, 

and 22. Are these responses which you provided to the 

staff of the Florida Public Service Commission? 

A These appear to be those documents, yes. 

Q Are they true and correct to the best of your 

knowledge and belief? 

A Given that these are the same documents that are 

included in my interrogatories that were filed. 

MR. SASSO: Just as a point of clarification, 

vir. Chairman, there is handwriting on these documents - -  

MS. BROWNLESS: And we said that at the very 

2eginning. Did you not hear that? 

MR. SASSO: Sorry. I was reviewing this. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Sure. 

3Y MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q The handwriting, Mr. Crisp, is not part of the 

iriginal materials filed by the Florida Power Corporation, 

- s  that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. I want to look at - -  I'm trying to see if 

:hese have separate pages on them - -  19, and the first 

)age which says Hines Unit 2 case, it is the second page 

If the packet? 

A I'm there. 
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Q And then the third page says Panda 530 case? 

A Okay. 

Q And let me ask you why this analysis for both 

the Hines case and the Panda case starts in the year 2000? 

A Because the model itself starts off in the base 

year of 2000. 

they start off with the same accumulated present worth of 

system revenue requirements, in other words, 1,099,179 and 

2,159,419, and 3,117,224. And what that is saying is this 

is a prior period to the actual incorporation of either of 

the Panda bid or any of the other effects on the dispatch 

stack. So the net effect of the dispatch stack doesn't 

start up until the 2004 time frame. 

Now, if you notice in both of the options 

Q So where you have - -  where it says new resource 

Euel and O&M revenue requirements and it has got little 

iashes, that would indicate that the analysis is not 

relevant there, it doesn't kick in until 2004 on both 

sheets ? 

A That's correct. 

Q So that for the Hines Unit 2 sheet, we would be 

.ooking at accumulated present worth of system revenue 

Yequirement of 4,928,993? 

.here. 

I'm just following it across 

A For the year 2004 that is correct. 

Q And on the Panda document, which is Page 3, the 
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requirement for 2004 would be 4,938,773, am I reading this 

right? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. With regard to where it says new resource 

fuel and O&M revenue requirement, I noticed that for the 

Hines unit you have 71,065, and what is the basis for that 

number? 

A Those are the revenue requirements associated 

with fuel costs and variable O&M. 

Q Okay. Does Florida Power Corporation at this 

time have fuel contracts in place to serve the Hines 

Unit 2 unit? 

A Those contracts are currently under negotiation. 

de do not have contracts in place specifically for 

3ines 2. 

Q Do you anticipate that you will be negotiating 

sith both FGT and Gulfstream? 

THE WITNESS: Is that a confidential issue, 

Zounsel ? 

MR. SASSO: Yes. Yes, it is. 

MS. BROWNLESS: I'm sorry, I didn't - -  

3Y MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q Well, let me rephrase my question in this way. 

lo you anticipate that you will be negotiating with 

vhatever natural gas suppliers are available to negotiate 
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sith? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. 

A Bring them on. 

Q All right. So these, this 71,065 is your 

?rejected fuel cost, is hat correct, for this unit? 

A That is for the 2004 time frame, yes. 

Q I notice that the corollary column for Panda 

indicates 100,156 approximately, I'm not going to get the 

right numbers here, a 30 million, is that correct, 

iifference? I don't know how many zeros are omitted from 

:hese charts. 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. Where was this pricing derived from? 

A It was derived from Panda's O&M. The O&M quotes 

:hat were included in the Panda proposal as well as the 

ionverted fuel pricing. 

Q I'm sorry, I didn't hear the last phrase. The 

quoted prices as well as what? 

A I believe, this is to the best of my knowledge, 

:hat that is the fuel and O&M associated with the Panda 

iontract. 

Q Okay. And that would have been what, 

information taken directly out of Panda's bid for the year 

2004? 
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A That's correct. And, once again, that is to the 

best of my knowledge. 

Q Sure. For the next year, 2005, does the 75,668 

a l s o  indicate a projected number? 

A I'm sorry, where are you? 

Q I am on your Hines case. 

A Okay. 

Q I am on the very next year. 

A 75,668, I'm with you. 

Q Yes, sir. Is that also based upon projected 

fuel cost? 

A Fuel and 0&M. 

Q Okay. Where did you get the corollary number on 

2005 for Panda, which is the 103,731? Was that directly 

2ff Panda's documents with regard to fuel and O&M? 

A It is the same source as the previous year. It 

is from the Panda contracts. 

Q Okay. Now, 2006, would that be the first year 

in which the model would select an option? 

A Yes, it would. 

Q And I just want to make sure I am understanding 

:he information that is down here. I am going to look at 

Tour Hines Unit 2 case, and I am looking at the year 2006, 

ind so for existing unit operating expenses it is 604,807, 

ind that i s  exactly the same number that it shows for 
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Panda for 2006  in that category, is that right? 

A I'm not with you right now. Tell me where - -  

Q Okay. I am on 2 0 0 6  on your Hines 2 case? 

A Okay. 

Q And I am looking at the Panda analysis for 2 0 0 6 ?  

A I see. 

Q So I am just trying to go across the columns 

iere. The 6 0 4 , 8 0 7  is the same for the Panda case existing 

init operating expenses as it is for Hines Unit 2, 

zorrect? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. Other purchased power production costs is 

L98,128, that is also true for Hines 2 ?  

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. For the Hines unit, the next category, 

tew resource capital, financial revenue requirement is 

. 0 2 , 3 7 0  for Hines and it is 1 1 1 , 5 1 6  for Panda, is that 

iorrect? 

A That's correct. 

Q What is included in the calculation of new 

'esource capital revenue requirement? 

A You are seeing the effect of the addition of a 

ombined cycle at that point to replace the lost - -  the 

nd of the Panda contract. 

Q Okay. And even though the model put in 
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2quivalent unit to that of the Hines Unit 2, there is this 

lisparity in new resource capital revenue requirements? 

A That is correct. 

Q And why is that? 

A Because the Hines 2 unit is approximately 20 to 

s30 million cheaper in the Hines 2 run then it would be at 

:hat point in time when you pulled an option for a 

iombined cycle off the market. 

Q So what this larger figure in the Panda case 

indicates is if Panda were going to the market to get a 

iombined cycle at that time? 

A It indicates what we would do if we had to go to 

:he market. Because once Panda is out, they are out. We 

lave to cover our load. So we would have to go to the 

narket and find a combined cycle to replace it. 

Q Okay. Are you aware of whether at this time 

?anda has on order combined cycles? 

A No, and that was not included in the proposal. 

Q Okay. To the extent that Panda has combined 

cycles on order, would that effect the determination of 

this number? 

A The number for Hines 2 is a number that is 

basically contracted with Siemens-Westinghouse, so that is 

where you get the 20 to $30 million lower cost. 

Q And I guess my question is you are assuming that 
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Power Corp would have to go out into the market beyond the 

contract with Siemens-Westinghouse and purchase at fair 

market value - -  at the current fair market value a 

combined cycle unit, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. Under your contract with 

Siemens-Westinghouse, do you have the ability not only to 

get a power block for Hines 2,  but also a power block for 

Hines 3? 

A That was a contract issue, and at the point in 

uhich your deposition of me we discussed the potential for 

the third Hines or the third power block - -  

Q Which is Tuesday, right? 

A Yes. - -  there are still negotiations going on. 

4fter Tuesday I learned from our construction specialists 

,hat the second unit is the only one that we are entitled 

20 now. 

Q So they have removed off the table the third 

2ower block unit? 

A That's correct. 

Q And is that because that has been - -  well, let 

ne ask this question. The contract as it stood prior to 

ruesday would have allowed you access to that third block? 

A Yes. 

MR. SASSO: We are getting into confidential 
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information. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I think you were done with 

that line of questioning. 

MS. BROWNLESS: I am done with that line. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Good timing. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q With regard to new resource fuel O&M revenue, I 

notice or it looks to me like the number is the same for 

the Hines Unit 2 case as well as the Panda 530 case, is 

that correct , 145 , 159? 

A Yes. 

Q And the next number, total revenue requirement, 

is different, it is higher for the Panda project, is that 

correct? 

A That is because you have added in the cost - -  

Q The capital cost? 

A - -  of that new combined cycle where you don't 

have the Hines 2 options. 

Q Sure. And then system revenue requirement for 

the Panda project would also be higher for the same 

reason? 

A 

Q 

across? 

A 

That's correct. 

In other words, this higher capital cost carries 

That's correct. 
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Q And then that is going to affect the present 

worth of system revenue requirement, also? 

A Correct. 

Q And obviously be reflected in the accumulated 

PWRR? 

A Correct. 

Q Okay. If I were to compare year 2008  for the 

Hines Unit 2 case, and that is the PWRR figure, the very 

last figure on the extreme right side, 8 , 2 0 4 , 5 8 8 ,  would 

that comparable number for Panda be 8 , 2 3 6 , 4 9 1 ?  

A Yes. I think you will find that all the Hines 

numbers for all the years involved are cheaper. 

Q Okay. I'm just trying to understand if that is 

m appropriate comparison. 

A I understand, yes. 

Q And the difference is roughly 3 2  million bucks? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, because virtually the same unit was modeled 

in each generation expansion plan from year 3 through the 

snd, through year 25 ,  when I look, for example, at year 

~ 0 1 0 ,  I am just going to pick that roughly, I would expect 

:o see that the numbers for the existing unit operating 

!xpenses, purchased power, and other options would be 

.dentical, correct? 

A Not necessarily. You could be experiencing - -  
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as far as when you bring on the combined cycles, 

maintenance required for those combined cycles happen at 

set intervals. And so the maintenance impact of those set 

intervals may cause some slight showing of disparity 

between the numbers. 

Q The reason I asked that question is quickly 

looking at the first two columns on both charts, the 

numbers in those charts appear to be identical? 

A Very good, yes. 

Q And I assume that is because the model was using 

2 very similar unit? 

A Yes. And I just wanted to make that clear. 

3ecause when you asked me that you said for all the 

-olumns, and so I didn't want to lead anybody astray. 

Q Sure. Thank you. 

Does the answer to Staff's Interrogatory Number 

t 9  include imputed debt? 

A Yes, it does. 

Q Was there an amount of imputed debt imputed to 

:he Panda project? 

A Yes. It was very slight, though. 

Q Okay. Was that imputed debt - -  what was the 

:ime frame over which that imputed debt was imputed? 

A Over a two-year period. 

Q Okay. So it would be over the same two-year 
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period that Panda's 500-megawatt unit was modeled? 

A Exactly . 

Q With regard to the interrogatories identified as 

20, do these numbers reflect the same type of analysis 

with the imputed debt removed? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. So if I were to subtract the very last 

number associated with 2028 on the Panda case in 

Interrogatory Number 20 from the very last number on the 

Panda case for Interrogatory Number 19, would I get the 

amount of imputed debt? 

MR. SASSO: Could we get a clarification of what 

column? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Oh, it is the very last column, 

PWRR, the very last one on your right, Mr. Sasso. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, I believe it would be 4 

million, the difference between 16,811. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Yes. It is about 4 . 5  million 

bucks. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q I mean, if I take 16,811,876 and substract 

16,748,815? 

A Right. 

Q Okay. 
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A I believe that to the best of my knowledge that 

would be the major difference. 

Q Thank you. 

A NOW, you do have - -  throughout the period of 

time since you have incurred the imputed debt on the front 

end of the contract, you do carry imputed debt through the 

life of the contract, so that is 4 million through the 

life. 

Q Okay. Or 4-1/2 million, whatever the difference 

is. 

A Right. 

Q With regard to Interrogatory Number 21, is it 

fair for me to characterize these as - -  oops, wait a 

ninute - -  comparisons of annual and cumulative revenue 

requirements for each option, Panda and Hines? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. And the difference in those options is 66  

nillion, approximately? 

A Could you hold on for just one minute, please? 

Q Sure. 

(Pause. ) 

A I'm ready for your questions. Thank you. 

Q Is the difference in revenue requirement between 

lines Unit 2 - -  and we are talking cumulative revenue 

requirement, which would be the very last number on the 
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extreme right-hand side of the page, approximately $66 

mill ion? 

A That's correct. 

Q And I'm assuming that these revenue requirements 

are directly correlated to the PWRR analysis that were 

previously described? 

A You mean in Interrogatory 19? 

Q Yes, sir. 

A These are not the same analyses. One is the 

initial screening and one is a supplemental screening. 

Q Okay. Was one done with the - -  19 was done with 

PROSCREEN and one was done with PROVIEW or a different 

type of model? 

A 19 was done with PROSCREEN, 2 1  was done with 

IROSYM, which is an hourly dispatch model. 

Q Thank you. And I believe you have testified 

,hat that is a more detailed model? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q With regard to Interrogatory Number 2 2 ,  was this 

:omparison also done using PROSYM? 

A Yes, it was. 

Q And this excludes the impact of imputed debt 

issociated with the Panda project? 

A That's correct. 

Q Interrogatory Number 23  consists of a series of 
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sensitivities, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q And these sensitivities used what computer 

model? You used what computer model to generate them? 

A To the best of my knowledge these were on 

PROSYM, as well. 

Q Okay. And there is a sensitivity for high fuel, 

a sensitivity for low fuel, and a sensitivity for 

alternate natural gas provider, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. Do you believe that this alternate gas 

provider is a viable natural gas option to the existing 

FGC system? 

A To the extent that we are going to negotiate 

with any and all gas providers, we are going to give them 

the credibility of existence. But from our standpoint of 

our operational requirements, the FGT gas system is the 

proven pipeline that is there right now. 

Q And the bottom line is that it is the difference 

between a pipeline in place and a proposed pipeline? 

A And a proposed pipeline. 

Q Does the FGT pipeline system that is in place 

have current capacity necessary to serve the Hines Unit 2 

anit? 

A The FGT pipeline currently has - -  and this is to 
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the best of my knowledge. The FGT pipeline currently has 

capacity to supply the Hines site for both Hines 1 and 2. 

I believe there is some additional work that has to be 

done on pipeline equipment within the siting area that is 

necessary to fit Hines 2. 

Q Would that additional construction or those 

additional facilities be the responsibility of Power Corp 

or FGT? 

A This is - -  you are right outside of my knowledge 

base now. 

Q So you don't know? 

A I don't know. 

Q Okay. In order to correctly reflect the 

comparisons between the Panda project and the Hines 

project, and I'm looking now at the cumulative revenue 

requirements all the way - -  the last column, all the way 

to the right. I do that in every instance, right, so I 

could subtract with regard to the high fuel sensitivity, 

the 17,367,178 from the Hines unit, 17,294,647? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. So that is about a 72 million buck 

difference? 

A Pardon me? 

Q It is about $72 million worth of difference? 

A I'm sorry, I have lost you. Which were you 
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looking at? 

Q Okay. I am looking at Page 4 of 1 2 ,  which says 

annual and cumulative revenue requirements, high fuel 

sensitivity, Panda? 

A I'm there. 

Q Now, the number that is all the way - -  the last 

number, the last line all the way on the right? 

A Right. 

Q Is the number that I compare that to on the data 

associated with the Hines unit 1 7 , 2 9 4 , 6 4 7 ?  

A Got you. 

Q So that the difference is approximately $ 7 2  

mi 11 ion? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. And for the low fuel sensitivity number, 

I'm looking again at all the way to the right for Panda's 

low fuel sensitivity. Would I take 1 5 , 4 3 9 , 7 4 6  and 

subtract from it 1 5 , 3 6 9 , 9 6 5 ?  

A That's correct. 

Q So that is about 6 9  million, is that correct? 

A That's correct. But I do believe I need to 

?oint out one issue. 

Q Sure. 

A As you are comparing these, I think it is 

important to point out that Panda's high fuel sensitivity, 
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Panda's low fuel sensitivity - -  I just caught my - -  I 

caught myself right there. I understand it now. I 

apologize, please. 

Q Sure. And finally with regard to potential new 

pipeline comparisons? 

A Right. 

Q I take the 16,662,848 and compare it to 

16,579,018? 

A That's correct. 

Q And that is about $83 million? 

A That's correct. 

Q Did these analyses make any adjustment for the 

€act that Panda might be able to get better natural gas 

?ricing than that available to Florida Power Corp? 

A Yes, they did. 

Q And in what way? 

A The confidential pipeline provider is typical11 

ioted as having better prices than the FGT prices that we 

included in the Hines analyses. 

Q I understand that, and hence the potential 

iipeline sensitivity study, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q Okay. My question is did FPC assume that Panda 

vould get - -  that Florida Power Corporation would get the 

jame prices from this potential pipeline as Panda could 
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get, that you would be treated the same by a potential 

pipeline? 

A I am not equipped to answer that. I'm 

fuels expert for Florida Power Corporation. And 

apologize, I don't know. 

Q 

not? 

A 

Q 

however? 

A 

Q 

Sure. So you don't know whether that 

I don't know that. 

not the 

I 

s true or 

It is possible that that was the assumption, 

It is possible. 

Thanks. 

MR. SASSO: Objection. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q Did your PWRR analysis for years 3 through 25 

assume that the generic heat rates used in the model for a 

combined cycle unit could be significantly different or 

different at all from the heat rate actually achieved by 

Panda? 

A Once the Panda contract was over with - -  are you 

talking about the period of time after the Panda contract? 

Q Yes, sir. 

A Then we used specific information that is 

included in our databases for combined cycle units. 

Q Okay. And that may or may not match the actual 
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heat rate that Panda would have been able to achieve with 

its unit had you exercised your one-year option? 

A In any event, Hines 2 has - -  

Q Well, can you just answer the question yes or no 

and then explain? 

A Hines 2 has a better heat rate. The options 

that we would - -  or, excuse me, the combined cycle units 

:hat we would most likely be exercising into that block or 

:hat opening would have been similar units which would 

lave had a better heat rate. 

Q That is not the question. The question is did 

:he model take into account that the actual heat rates 

ichieved by the Panda units in year number 3 could have 

ieen different than what was modeled, and you can say yes 

)r no and then explain? 

A I don't understand your reference to the Panda 

.nits in year 3. 

Q My understanding is that for the first two years 

'ou used Panda-specific data and the heat 

anda, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q And my question is simply this, 

hat was supplied by Panda different than 

ate that the model would use from year 3 

A Yes. 

rate supplied by 

is the heat rate 

the generic heat 

forward? 
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Q So the heat rate could be different from the 

actual unit in year 3 forward, the fuel prices could be 

different from the actual unit in year 3 forward. Could 

the O&M expenses be different from the actual unit from 

year 3 forward? 

MR. SASSO: I'm going to object. She has 

included three different things in there; two as 

assumptions, which are her interpretation of what has just 

happened. I think she wants him to answer only the third, 

but I would certainly object to her assumptions. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Well, I believe that the witness 

has just answered that the heat rates could, in fact, be 

different. That was his testimony. And he has just 

answered that the fuel costs could, in fact, be different. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: So you are essentially 

restating his answers. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Well, let me just ask the final 

question, then. 

MR. SASSO: Mr. Chairman, my certain is I have 

no idea what that means; the heat rates can be different, 

the fuel costs may be different. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Well, let's clear up the 

first issue. His answers can stand for themselves. And 

if she misstated them, then he can correct them. 

MS. BROWNLESS: I can withdraw that question and 
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ask a simpler one. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q If the Panda unit that was bid by Panda was 

actually selected by Power Corp in year number 3, which 

was an option, could the present worth revenue requirement 

produced by your analyses be different? 

MR. SASSO: I'm going to have to object to that 

question, too. I'm not sure what she is asking him to 

speculate about. It's clear she is asking him to 

speculate, but I don't understand the question. 

MS. BROWNLESS: It is a very simple question. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q If the parameters put into the computer model 

are different in year number 3, is it possible that the 

results could be different? 

A If you change the parameters, certainly. But 

the problem is that the - -  

Q Well, the answer is yes or no, and then you can 

2xplain. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I think he gave a yes. 

dell, maybe not - -  

THE WITNESS: Yes. If you change the parameters 

20 the model you will have different results. The problem 

lrith this is that the heat rates for Panda are higher. 
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BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q But you would have no way of knowing how that 

would impact with other parameters that were different as 

well, correct? 

A You have a refined set of assumptions that run 

within the model. 

Q Wait a minute. Let me just explain. If I ask a 

question, I think you are supposed to say yes or no and 

then explain. 

MR. SASSO: Well, first - -  

MS. BROWNLESS: And then if you don't understand 

the question - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Excuse me. 

MS. BROWNLESS: - -  then you can say you don't 

understand. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: We will ask the witness to 

?lease respond with a yes or no and then you can explain 

your answer. 

MR. SASSO: First, I would like to make an 

2bjection to the question. I don't believe it was a 

?roper questions. I'm not sure I remember what it was at 

;his point, but - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Could you restate your 

que s t ion ? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Sure. 
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BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q If the parameters placed into the model are 

different than those parameters that you used in 

developing, for example, the results to Interrogatory 

Number 19, will the results be different? 

A If you change - -  yes. If you change - -  now, can 

I please clarify for the Commission's benefit. 

Q Sure. 

A If you change the parameters on an evaluation 

for one unit, those same parameters will ripple through to 

the other units. Clear so far? So if you make a change 

in that third year and you, for instance, included Panda's 

heat rate and Panda's model - -  Panda's contract provisions 

in the third year, I believe, subject to check, what you 

would see is what you see in those third year numbers 

actually for many of these sensitivity analyses, is that 

the Panda numbers will once again be higher because of a 

higher heat rate, a higher variable O&M rate, and a higher 

zapacity cost. 

Q In point of fact, did you do any computer 

nodeling in which Panda's numbers were used in year three? 

A Absolutely. In the screening process - -  we have 

Deen through this I think it was about an hour ago, when I 

zalked about P1 and P2. Each one of those analyses went 

zhrough and selected the best possible cost option for 
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Panda. That means that year 3 was much more expensive 

than a two-year option. 

Q So the answer is no, you didnlt; but if you had, 

it would have been more expensive? 

MR. SASSO: Objection. Mr. Chairman, that is 

exactly the opposite of what Mr. Crisp just said and what 

he has testified repeatedly to today. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I think his answer to the 

prior question was pretty clear. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Crisp, can you clarify 

something for me? 

THE WITNESS: I will be happy to. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: When you say to figure out 

what the best option for Panda was, are you saying that 

you ran the model for every year 25 years out? 

THE WITNESS: What we did for Panda - -  I'm 

sorry. We ran the models in the screening analysis for 

every year out through and it went out through the 25-year 

time frame, yes. But the point of clarification is is 

that it is a cumulative process and so you can look at the 

results year-by-year. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Educate me, because I 

really would like to understand how this process is. For 

ne this is the first need determination. When you look at 
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the runs each year, what goes into your analyses and 

determination with respect to what the best option will 

be? 

THE WITNESS: If I may take a moment for 

latitude, we will go kind of back to the beginning of how 

you set up a generation fleet. And you take all of the 

generation units that Florida Power Corporation either 

Dwns, contracts for, or receives a supply for, and you 

load them all up. Those are all of the units and the net 

total capacity down at the bottom that Florida Power Corp 

has access to to serve its load. And then you do your 

ialculation to make sure that you have got the appropriate 

?umber or percentage of reserve margins. 

But you compare it - -  well, you set up your 

generation stack with all of those generating units and 

JOU load those in your model. You include things like 

ieat rate for each one of the units. On supply contracts 

(ou include either the way that the wording of the 

:ontract is, it can be a fixed cost contract where they 

supply it to you at a set amount of dollars per megawatt 

lour, that you load the parameters in for that contract to 

say, okay, it is either at this dollars per megawatt hour 

)r it is going to convert gas at this heat rate. 

And you load in variable O&M for each one of the 

inits, which I believe we have included in the 
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interrogatory files. You include all of the capacity 

costs for those units in the contracts. So what you wind 

up with when you push a button, the computer goes through 

and runs it, it does a simulation of how all those 

generation units run on a day-by-day basis. 

And the difference in PROSCREEN and PROSYM is 

PROSCREEN takes a look at it on a weekly basis. It is a 

very high level screening tool. In other words, it just 

looks at minor changes on a week-by-week basis of how a 

fleet might run. It also includes forced outage rates and 

planned maintenance. So spitting out down at the bottom 

right-hand corner is a total production cost. And what 

that is is that is the cost for the entire fleet to run to 

serve Florida Power Corporation's load. 

NOW, in order to do an analysis as in the 

malysis that was done for Panda, it was important for us 

20 take all of the different information that Panda 

?rovided us, both of the 250-megawatt blocks because they 

vere priced differently, we couldn't just merge them 

zogether, that wouldn't have been fair to Panda. We took 

:hem separately and loaded them in as two separate 

?ntities; each one having a two-year term, or a three-year 

:erm, or a four-year term, or a five-year term. And we 

ncluded all of their variable O&M costs for each one of 

;he years. 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: Did you ask Panda if the 

options could be - -  if the blocks could be merged? 

THE WITNESS: No, we did not. Because what we 

wanted to do was let the model determine what the best 

possible cost was. I believe Panda told us on the front 

end when we asked them for an additional block, they 

agreed to give us the additional block assuming that both 

- -  either one, or two, or both would be selected. 

So in going through the process now, you do 

these evaluations on a one-by-one basis. And the computer 

3oes through a production cost run over a full life or a 

25-year lifespan. It evaluates the total production cost, 

for instance, for that first 250-megawatt block for only 

two years, and then it evaluates it for three years, then 

it evaluates it for four years, and then it evaluates it 

€or five years. 

Then it goes through another permutation. It 

zakes the second block in and it evaluates it for two 

(ears, three years, four years, or five years. Then it 

starts making permutations of those combinations, seeing 

if there is a better way to match up that 250 and 250 

negawatt block to come up with something that is even 

letter. 

NOW, also included in our generation database 

ire each of the different technologies that are available 
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to us right now. Whether it is combined cycle, or peaking 

units, either EA, F, or G configurations of peaking units. 

And those are simply letters that designate - -  EA, it's a 

little bit older, a little bit higher heat rate, not as 

efficient. F is a little bit newer, better heat rate. G 

is kind of out on the leading edge, very new and very 

unproven to this point. I can't say very unproven, but it 

is being proven at this point. 

But the point there being that the model goes 

through and picks the best possible solution for the 

ratepayer, because that is what we are trying to achieve 

is that bottom right-hand corner number that says here is 

the best possible production cost. 

So in an attempt to put - -  that's why I say in 

an attempt to put Panda in its best light, that was what 

we wanted to do. We didn't want to penalize them in any 

way, shape, or form for the fact that they came in 

underneath what we requested. In fact, we went back and 

Jot the full 500 megawatt complement as a proposal. But 

then we went back in and sorted through to see what else 

de could to shape it to make it the best possible 

?reduction cost for the Panda bid. 
COMMISSIONER JABER: Thank you. 

THE WITNESS: You're welcome. 

3Y MS. BROWNLESS: 
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Q If you had used a five-year time frame, would 

;he PWRR analysis, cumulative present worth requirement 

lumbers be different than those for a 25-year time frame? 

MR. SASSO: I've got to object to that question, 

zoo. I'm not sure I understand it. Again, I'm not sure 

it makes any sense. I don't understand whether Ms. 

3rownless is asking if you stopped the stream at five 

years and had only five years numbers would they look 

fiifferent from 25 years numbers or whether she means to 

3sk something more fundamental. 

MS. BROWNLESS: No, I just mean to ask a very 

simple question. 

3Y MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q If you used your same computer model and instead 

2f modeling over a 25-year period you had modeled over 

mly a five-year period, would you expect the CWRR 

results to be different? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: That was similar to the 

question that you asked before, but why don't we go ahead 

2nd just present the question the way you just asked it 

2nd see what the answer would be. 

THE WITNESS: I don't know the answer to that, 

I'm sorry. The two-year run obviously was the run that 

was selected, indicating that it was cheaper than the 

five-year run. 
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MS. BROWNLESS: No, sir, that is not my 

quest ion. 

THE WITNESS: I apologize. 

MS. BROWNLESS: I am obviously not being very 

articulate here. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q If you had taken your PROSCREEN analysis and 

instead of evaluating options over a 25-year period you 

had evaluated Panda's options over a five-year period, 

would you expect the CWRR analysis even as you modeled 

Panda's options to be different? 

MR. SASSO: I have to object again. I'm afraid 

the confusion adheres in the question. As Mr. Crisp has 

testified repeatedly that the Panda option was modeled 

mer a five-year term and a four-year and a three-year and 

s two-year. I think I understand Ms. Brownless to be 

2sking something very different, but her question is 

smbiguous. And I'm afraid the answer is going to be 

zonfusing and the record is going to be confused. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q If you stop the PWRR analysis for the Hines 

Jnit 2 unit at five years, would the CWRR dollar figure be 

different? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: That sounds more 

reasonable. I think it does. We'll let the question go. 
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MR. SASSO: Well, does she mean to say assume 

that Hines would operate for only five years and Panda 

would operate for five years? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: That is the question that 

is on the floor. Go ahead, Mr. Crisp. 

THE WITNESS: The numbers should be the same. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q As that is shown over a 25-year period? 

A To the best of my knowledge I would believe they 

dould be the same. 

Q Here is what I don't understand about that. My 

inderstanding is that there is a capital component that is 

iarried forward each year that figures into a cumulative 

?resent revenue requirement, is that correct? 

A Correct. 

Q So I assumed that that capital component - -  that 

:here is a cost for that capital component over each year 

if an analysis, is that correct? 

A Correct. 

Q So I would assume that the total dollars 

issociated with a CWRR revenue analysis for 25 years would 

)e greater than the total revenue requirements associated 

Jith the same unit over five years? 

A So I believe what you are suggesting is is we 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

0 3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0  

11 

1 2  

13  

15 

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20  

2 1  

22  

2 3  

2 4  

2 2 7  

take the entire cost of Hines and load it in for five 

years. 

Q No. What I am suggesting is that if you had 

taken your PWRR analysis - -  well, actually I probably am 

suggesting that. 

put it in there during a five-year period, would you 

expect the CWRR number to be greater? 

If you took the total cost of Hines and 

MR. SASSO: I have to object just to protect the 

record, because I'm not sure I believe that I understand 

the question correctly. Because as I understand it, she 

is asking if you pack 25 years of costs of a unit into 

five years and compare it to Panda what will you get. 

That is a nonsensical question. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Well, nonsensical or not it is a 

fair one. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I will allow the question. 

THE WITNESS: The numbers would be different. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q Okay. If you prorated the Hines unit capital 

cost to the first five years of that unit and ran a 

revenue analysis with that assumption would the CWRR 

results be different? 

A I believe they would. Please come back again, 

you are losing me. 

Q The first question was if you took all the 
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capital costs associated with Hines Unit 2 and packed them 

into five years, would the CWRR results be different? 

A That would be different. 

Q That would be different. All right. If you 

took 1/5th of those costs, the costs associated with the 

first five years, okay? 

A Of Hines? 

Q For Hines. 

A Uh-huh. 

Q And you ran your analysis for five years, would 

the CWRR number at the end of that five year be different? 

MR. SASSO: Different from what? I'm going to 

object. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Different from that of the 25 

year PWRR analysis for the Hines Unit 2 unit? 

MR. SASSO: Does Ms. Brownless mean the delta, 

the difference between the two units being compared, or is 

she comparing five years of Hines operation versus 2 5  

years? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Excuse me, we can't have 

30th of you talking. You have an objection? 

MR. SASSO: Yes, I'm making an objection because 

1 think the question is terribly ambiguous. 

MS. BROWNLESS: It is quite simple. 

3Y MS. BROWNLESS: 
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Q If you take five years of capital cost 

associated with Hines Unit 2 - -  

A The first five years? 

Q The first five years. - -  and you run your PWRR 

analysis? 

A For five years? 

Q For five years. 

A Just as they appear here in 2003 through 2008 in 

the interrogatory? 

Q Well, I'm going to ask that question in a 

ninute, okay. Would the number be different than the CWRR 

number that falls out at the end of 25 years for that 

unit? 

MR. SASSO: Again, I must object. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Mr. Sasso, with all due respect, 

if you are - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Excuse me, excuse me, 

sxcuse me. Let him finish his objection. 

MR. SASSO: If she is asking whether five years 

dorth of cost numbers are different from 25 years worth of 

zost numbers, I would have to object on the grounds of 

relevance because it is an absurd question. 

If she means to ask something else, I would 

?refer that she clarify it. Because I can't understand 

it, and we are spending an awful lot of time, I think, 
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getting nowhere. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Well, with all due respect to 

Mr. Sasso, I don't think Mr. Sasso needs to understand the 

question, I think his witness needs to understand the 

question. So to the extent his witness understands it, I 

would appreciate the witness' answer. 

THE WITNESS: And I am struggling to understand 

it. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Excuse me. That was not 

the essence of his objection. I thought the essence was 

relevance, whether or not the question was relevant to - -  

MS. BROWNLESS: It is absolutely relevant. In 

other words, they have stated - -  

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q Let me ask this question. You believe the 

3ppropriate time over which to analyze all of these bids 

is a 25-time-year period, correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q And in all the analysis you have used a 

25-time-year period, correct? 

A 

Q 

naximum a 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

You got data from Panda that covered at a 

five-year time period, correct? 

That's correct. 

Okay. All I'm trying to ask is did you do a 
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PWRR analysis that stopped at the fifth year? 

A Can you please - -  can you please clarify that 

question? Are you asking me did we stop the computers at 

five years? 

Q Did you use your model and put the timeline in 

over which you were going to optimize or maximize your 

system as a five-year time period? 

A No, we did not. 

Q And you didn't do that for any of the bids, 

right? 

A No, we did not. 

Q Did you do a PWRR analysis over a ten-year 

period, from 2003 to '14, I guess? 

A We ran a ten-year screening study. 

Q Those were the sensitivity studies, correct? 

A Yes, the screening studies. 

Q On PROSYM, right? 

A Yes. 

Q But you did not do a PROVIEW PWRR analysis for a 

ten-year period, correct? 

A 

Q 

plans, do 

contained 

A 

To the best of my knowledge, no. 

When you are developing your ten-year site 

you use a ten-year planning horizon for the data 

in those ten-year site plans? 

Yes, we do. 
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Q And you have traditionally done that, is that 

correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q To the extent that a site plan extrapolates fuel 

data from ten years onward, is it less reliable every 

year? 

A You mean from an incremental standpoint less 

reliable? 

Q Yes, sir. 

A I think as you get out in the future, as you get 

further and further out in time obviously things are a 

little less reliable, yes. 

Q And they become more reliable the further out 

you go? 

A I would be inclined to agree with that. 

Q Thank you. I would like to pass out what I 

think has been included in Staff's Production of Documents 

Request Number 1 - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Excuse me. Had you 

finished your - -  

THE WITNESS: There was one thing that was 

Dothering me there, Commissioner. The one thing that I 

mow I can guarantee about a 25-year time frame and 

looking out in time is that if we build our plant in a 

regulated rate of return environment, the customer is only 
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going to pay for that plant one time in that 25-year time 

frame. And if we cut it off at the end of two years or 

five years and open ourselves up to market exposure, we 

don't know how many times the customer is going to pay for 

a plant to support that particular 530-megawatt block. 

That is a guarantee for out in the future that I think we 

can guarantee. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q Will the customer ever pay for more megawatts 

than are necessary to serve him? 

A No, the customer will not pay for more megawatts 

necessary to serve him. 

Q Because you are not going to purchase more, 

right, or you are not going to charge him for more? 

A We are going to buy the necessary amount of 

negawatts to maintain our operating system and serve our 

3bligation. 

Q Does your assessment that 25 years is reasonable 

fiepend upon the fact that this will continue to be a 

zotally regulated environment for Florida Power 

Clorporat ion? 

A Our RFP is based on a regulated environment. 

Q And by regulated you mean rate base regulated as 

de have traditionally known it? 

A That's correct. 
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Q Thank you. Was this information contained in 

the response to Staff Interrogatories Number l? And I 

will give you a second to check through those materials, 

because there were a lot of materials provided pursuant to 

that request. 

A Staff's Interrogatory Number 1 - -  

Q Not Interrogatory Number 1, I'm sorry. 

Production of Documents Request Number 1. 

MR. SASSO: I would just note that the document 

that we - -  the documents we produced have Bate's numbers, 

this does not. So we are having some difficulty verifying 

it. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Gary, this was sent to me under 

the little tab that said Number 1. So that is how I got 

the idea it was Staff's Request for Production Number 1. 

You all provided it. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q Let me ask it this way. Are you familiar with 

this document at all, Mr. Crisp? 

A No, I'm not. I'm hoping to find it in the stack 

here so that I can put it into context. 

Q If you are not familiar with it we won't pursue 

any questions about it. 

A I apologize. 

Q Sure. 
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MR. SASSO: This is a confidential exhibit. 

This is supposed to be handled only in envelopes. Can we 

collect this back, please? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Well, with all due respect, if I 

had handed it out in an envelope one would have taken it 

out of the envelope to look at it, would one not? 

MR. SASSO: Well, we have a special procedure in 

place for handling exhibits at the hearing as opposed to 

discovery. We have produced these to you in discovery 

under a confidentiality agreement. At the hearing they 

are supposed to stay in envelopes. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Well, to the extent that I could 

ask general questions about these documents and not reveal 

their content - -  

MS. HART: Mr. Chairman, we could pass out our 

version. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Is it under a confidentia 

envelope? Let's do that. That will solve the issue real 

quickly. 

MR. SASSO: Is staff's version also - -  or is it 

in a confidential envelope? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Yes, they indicate that it 

is. 

MR. SASSO: Can we collect the open copies? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Sure. 
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MS. HART: Mr. Chairman, we are also sending 

iround the redacted version of this document. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Do you want to go 

ihead and mark this now or - -  

MS. HART: Yes, the redacted version. 

MR. SASSO: May we have an opportunity to see 

;he redacted version before it is marked? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. 

(Pause. ) 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: So we can mark that as 

Ixhibit 6, titled FPC's confidential response to Staff 

Interrogatories 4 through 5 and 21 through 23. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Are we all ready? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: NOW, I understand you only 

ruranted to mark the redacted version, you don't want to 

nark the confidential version? 

MR. ELIAS: We don't need to mark the 

zonfidential version. That will be secure throughout the 

process and this is just meant to show the trail. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Sure. This has the 

information that you are looking for, Ms. Brownless? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: You may proceed. 

(Exhibit 6 marked for identification.) 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 
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Q To the extent that a date is indicated on here 

by which a contract needed to be finalized, was that date 

net? 

A Could you please restate the question. 

Q I'm going to refer you to Bullet 4 on the very 

first page. 

A Okay. I'm there. 

Q All right. To the extent that a contract date 

is stated in this document, was that contract date met? 

A The contract being the Hines 2 option? 

Q The contract referenced in this document. 

MR. SASSO: Mr. Crisp, just as a caution, since 

this is confidential we are taking care not to articulate 

m y  of the details of the document. I know this is 

2wkward, but if you can answer without disclosing details. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. Yes. 

3Y MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q Was the dollar amount shown on this document in 

relation to that contract applied toward the purchase of 

:he commodity involved? 

A I don't know the answer to that. I think that 

is an answer that someone else is responsible for. 

Q Do you know who would be able to answer that 

;hat is a witness in this proceeding? 

A Someone in our construction area. 
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Q Do you have a name for a witness that will be 

produced here? 

MR. SASSO: We can offer a name. I think he was 

just about to do it. 

THE WITNESS: Eric Major. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q If you don't know the answer to this question, 

Mr. Major would be the person that I should pursue this 

with, please feel free to indicate that. 

Is the contract referenced now binding on both 

parties to your understanding? 

A Mr. Major should answer that. 

Q Should Mr. Major answer any questions concerning 

the status of this particular contract? 

A Yes. 

Q If I turn to the second page of this document, 

there is a reference there to different perspectives, are 

there not, on the right-hand side of the document? 

A Top right-hand side of the page. 

Q Okay. And there are two categories of 

perspectives, are there not? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. There is a reference to a phrase on the 

very first bullet of the very first perspective. Do you 
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see that? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Okay. What is meant by that particular 

terminology? 

A I think the asterisked statement at the bottom 

of the box provides a good description as well as the 

method of determining that value. 

Q Okay. Do you know why the year in question that 

is on this particular document on that same first bullet 

point was selected? 

A Yes. 

Q Can you share that with us? 

A Because it is a part of our financial planning 

horizon. 

Q Okay. 

A It extends to that year. 

Q And that is the only reason 

selected? 

A That's correct. 

hat date was 

Q That date would not have been selected in 

relationship to the previous nomenclature we just 

discussed? 

A You mean concerning the previous page? 

Q No, concerning the previous two words on that 

bullet point. Does it have any relationship to the 
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Zoncept expressed in the first two words there? 

A Nothing is implied there. We have a five-year 

Einancial planning horizon. 

Q Okay. And this would have been five years from 

govember 15th - -  well, five years from the date of this 

document? 

A We look in whole year increments; 2001, 2, 3, 4,  

2nd 5. 

Q Okay. The figures that are mentioned here as 

being discounts, are those compared to prices at the time 

that this document is dated? I'm looking on the - -  

A Top left-hand corner. 

Q - -  top left-hand corner? 

A It is a comparison at the time that this 

iocument was made. 

Q Now, I also noticed in the top left-hand corner 

Bullet Number 3 that there is some other terminology used 

there. Does this document - -  contained in this document 

is there 

there at 

A 

Q 

A 

quest ion 

Q 

a definition of the terminology that is used 

the end of the bullet point? 

Can you please rephrase your question. 

All right. I'm in the box on the - -  

I know where you are. Just please rephrase the 

Is there a definition in this document of the 
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last two words on that - -  on the first line of the last 

bullet point? 

A There is no definition in this document for 

those words. 

Q Okay. Would those words have the same meaning 

as the generic common meaning that one might associate 

with them? 

A I think that the confusion from those two words 

in the upper left-hand box - -  and this is subject to 

check - -  

Q Sure. 

A - -  are pertaining to that particular bullet 

point, not necessarily to the bullet points in the upper 

right-hand box. 

Q Okay. That is the answer to a different 

question. But my question is looking at those two words 

contained on the left-hand third bullet point, can I give 

those two words the common meaning usually associated with 

them? 

A I assume so. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Do you have much more, Ms. 

Brownless? 

MS. BROWNLESS: On this document I don't think 

s o .  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. I didn't want to 
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zake a break until you were done. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Would you like to take a break? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Yes. I want to give the 

zourt reporter a break, but I want to get gone with this 

Eirst so we can put it away. 

:he - -  

I wanted to get done with 

MS. BROWNLESS: Oh, with this document? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Yes. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Okay. Thank you. 

3Y MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q I'm looking now on the third page of this 

jocument, and I'm looking at the second big box. It has 

1, 2, 3, 4,  5, 6, 7, that box? 

A I see it. 

Q Okay. And I'm looking at Item Number 3, okay? 

A Okay. 

Q Would this be an attempt to address your demand 

zurve? 

A I think this is an attempt to go back to the 

issues of optimizing our generation fleet and removing our 

ixposure to demand-side management cancellations. 

Q Okay. With regard to Item Number 4 there, would 

this indicate that this type of capability would be 

sxhausted in the Polk County area? 

A I'm not equipped to answer that. This is not my 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



243 

1 

2 

0 3  

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 e 

area of expertise. 

Q Okay. With regard to Item Number 5, could I 

take it that that would apply to nonretail transactions? 

That would pertain to opportunity transactions A 

if the opportunities presented themselves on a very, very 

short-term basis. For instance, in off-season periods or 

during periods where we were operationally very sound and 

we would have that obligation to bring that value back to 

the ratepayer. 

Q So that would be nonretail transactions, then? 

A That's correct. 

Q And with regard to Number 7 that is listed 

there, can I take, again, that language at commonly 

understood value? 

A I believe so, to the best of my knowledge. 

Q Sure. I'm looking on the right-hand side now in 

the box that is, like, lowest to the box we were just 

talking about, and it has seven numbers there also? 

A It starts with the word plans? 

Q Yes. Do I take Number 6 to mean that at the 

date of this memorandum the equipment discussed here was 

firmly available to Power Corp? 

A At this point, as in the prior years, the option 

was there. Power Corp was required to pay, I believe, a 

maintenance fee to maintain the option. 
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Q And the language here refers to that? 

A I would suggest that Mr. Major could provide the 

answer to that. 

Q Sure. To the extent that there are financial 

figures at the bottom of both this page and the next, I 

assume that those were true and correct to the best of 

FPC's knowledge and belief at that time, correct? 

A Correct. But, once again, these areas are out 

of my expertise. This is a financial analysis performed 

by financial specialists. 

Q Thank you. Is there any difference between what 

has been labelled FPC 298 and what has been labelled FPC 

299? 

A Yes, there is. 

Q And what is that difference? 

A There is a signature block on FPC 299. 

Q So this would be a final approved documen, of 

Power Corp? 

A That's correct. But I would caution - -  rather 

than be misleading, I would caution everyone to look at 

the title and make note of if the option is selected. 

Q Yes, sir. But all of this data would be in 

Power Corps' opinion accurate once the option was 

selected? 

A I think the key word there was if the option was 
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selected. At this point in time no determination was made 

to select this option. 

Q Okay. Thank you. 

MR. SASSO: I would also like to note an 

objection insofar as some of the data does not reflect 

existing facts when we are talking about accuracy. 

MS. BROWNLESS: And I believe we clarified that 

it was as of the date of this material. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Why don't we - -  only as to 

the knowledge of the witness will I allow the question. 

So he can answer only as to his knowledge. Do you 

understand? 

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, no, I don't understand. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Your counsel had objected 

to the question. And I indicated that I will allow it 

only to the extent of your knowledge. 

THE WITNESS: I understand. As noted before, 

this is a document and this information was to the best of 

our knowledge at this particular date. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you. I am done with that 

document, sir. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: We will take a break. 

MS. HART: Mr. Chairman, if I could interrupt. 

We are going to collect that confidential information 

again as we leave. Thanks. 
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COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Great. We will come back 

at 4:30. For your information, we are intending on going 

until 6 : O O  p.m. today. 

(Recess. ) 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Back on the record. Go 

ahead. You can proceed. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Just for the record, you have 

previously identified Florida Power Corporation's 

responses to staff Interrogatories 1 9 ,  20, 21, 22, and 23. 

Could I have those marked as an exhibit? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I'm sorry, give me the 

description again. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Staff Interrogatory Responses - -  

and these are partial responses. This is the Hines Unit 2 

and Panda Energy portions of these interrogatories. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: These are Power Corp's 

responses to staff's interrogatories? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Yes. Number 1 9 ,  20, 21, 22 and 

23. And these do not contain any confidential material. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: NOW, as a part of Exhibit 

6 we had 21 through 23. Was that the same set of 

interrogatories? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Well, the Confidential Exhibit 

Number 6 contains both the nonconfidential and 

confidential portions. And so my exhibit would just 
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contain the nonconfidential portion of Exhibits 21 and 23. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. Show that 

marked as Exhibit 7. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you. And could we move 

those into the record at this time? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Do you want to do it now 

or wait until you were completed with all the cross? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Well, I was going to try to do 

it now before I forget it. 

MR. SASSO: I'm sorry, I'm trying to get 

straight on the exhibits here. Ms. Brownless' 

Confidential Exhibits 6 ,  as I understand it, was the 

exhibit that staff handed out in the maroon binder? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Correct. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Yes, that is the confidential 

naterial. And that includes staff Interrogatory Number 4 

2nd 5, Staff Interrogatories 21 and 23, and Staff POD 

Yumber 8. 

MR. SASSO: So Panda is taking staff's exhibit 

2nd using that as Panda's Exhibit 6 ?  

MS. BROWNLESS: No, sir. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: It was my understanding 

:hat staff intends to sponsor that on their cross of Mr. 

lrisp. 

MS. BROWNLESS: That was just identified. 
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COMMISSIONER JACOBS: As a matter of convenience 

they went ahead and identified it and passed it out now 

because they had it in folders. This exhibit is 

nonconfidential responses to the same - -  

MS. BROWNLESS: It is the nonconfidential 

responses. 

MR. SASSO: So Exhibit 6 is staff's exhibit? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Correct. 

MR. SASSO: Okay. 

MS. BROWNLESS: And Exhibit 7 is the 

nonconfidential material that I provided you with, Gary. 

And that would be responses to staff interrogatories - -  

the nonconfidential portion of Staff Interrogatories 19, 

20 ,  21, 2 2 ,  and 23. 

MR. SASSO: Got it. I apologize, Mr. Chairman, 

You had asked me a question and I didn't hear it. Has it 

been answered? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Actually that was it. No, 

that wasn't the question. 

MS. BROWNLESS: The question is I would like to 

move this into evidence. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: And I was going to ask you 

if you had any objection? 

MR. SASSO: No objection. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. That being the 
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case, show Exhibit 7 admitted. 

(Exhibit 7 marked for identification and 

admitted into the record.) 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Suzanne, when you talk 

during other people's conversation, I can't hear anything. 

MS. BROWNLESS: I'm sorry. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: No problem. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. You may 

proceed. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q I would like to turn now to what has been marked 

as Composite Exhibit Number 5 .  

A Can you clarify what Composite Exhibit Number 5 

is? 

Q Sure. That is the list of appendix items. I am 

?articularly interested in the list of appendix items. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: That is all of the 

sxhibits to your testimony. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Right. 

MR. SASSO: Okay. I assume - -  if I may ask, Mr. 

Zhairman, that Ms. Brownless is talking about Confidential 

Ixhibit 3 ?  

MS. BROWNLESS: You have put all of those 

3xhibits - -  this was - -  let me just read the heading, 

Zary, because I am little confused about where it is 
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included in the record. I believe you put in the record 

all - -  the complete need determination, both the 

nonconfidential portions and the confidential portions, 

did you not? 

MR. SASSO: That's correct. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Okay. And there is a portion of 

need study that says confidential section, list of 

appendix items. 

MR. SASSO: Yes, that is confidential. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Okay. NOW, the only thing I 

wish to ask questions about is Item Number 7, which are 

Panda's responses, and we will waive confidentiality with 

regard to those. So are we all looking at the same 

document? 

THE WITNESS: Can you give me a title of the 

document? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Let me show what you the front 

?age looks like. And as I said, Panda waives its 

ionfidentiality with respect to this information, so we 

are going to go ahead and just ask questions about it. 

3Y MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q The heading on this schedule is nonprice 

attributes, is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Are these the attributes that were listed in 
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Section C of the RFP that we discussed earlier? 

A As I explained in my deposition, there is not 

necessarily a one-to-one correlation between these 

nonprice attributes and what is contained in Section C. 

Section C was a request for information or options that 

FPC would like to have seen providing good creative 

solutions and gave some suggestions. This is not 

necessarily a one-to-one correlation between those two 

documents. 

Q So there may be some items that were listed in 

Section C that are not included in this analysis? 

A If, for instance, there was an item in Section C 

that Panda did not include in their proposal, then they 

would not have been penalized. 

Q I'm just trying to get the correlation. The 

correlation is that there was a series of items listed in 

Section C, and is it a correct statement that not all of 

those items are addressed in this document? 

A That's correct. 

Q The way this document is set up, it says factor, 

attribute, commentary, and significance, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q And I asked you at your deposition with regard 

to the Page 6 of 6, operational flexibility, the 

significance box was omitted. Do you have a response for 
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that now? 

A Yes, I do. I went back and asked. This was 

identified as an issue, but there was no attribute factor 

associated with this particular issue. We just identified 

it as an issue and didn't list it as a pro or a con. 

Q Okay. So the fact that maintenance risk would 

be minimized because the contract was for five years was 

not given any ranking by you? 

A No, it was not. 

Q You don't consider it - -  well, let me ask this 

question. Let's talk a little bit about what these 

rankings mean. What do you mean when you say critical? 

A If something is listed as critical it is 

something that is extremely important. Look at that very 

carefully and evaluate it in terms of a very serious 

nature. Significant would be something that is very 

important, but not as important as crit cal. Moderate, 

just moderate of importance, and minimal is not very 

important. I think I can clarify your concern over 

Dperation and maintenance plans. 

Q Please do. 

A The commentary is written since this is a 

short-term proposal, five years or less, the operations 

m d  maintenance risk should be minimized given a 

reasonable package of performance guarantees. There are 
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nany different speculative issues in this statement, so it 

yruras not used as a plus or a minus. It wasn't used against 

Panda in any way. We just made a note to ourselves that 

said this is something that is out there. 

it's not a plus, it's not a minus. 

It's an issue; 

Q Okay. So it had no effect? 

A No effect. 

Q Okay. I want to start at the top on strategic 

factors, and I notice that you considered it extremely 

detrimental to Panda's case because Panda's proposal was 

an exempt wholesale generator, is that correct? 

A That's not correct. 

MR. SASSO: Objection. That is a 

mischaracterization of this. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Ms. Brownless. I'm sorry. 

The objection was that - -  mischaracterization, that is 

different, but I assume what you are saying is it is not 

re levant ? 

MR. SASSO: She is mischaracterizing this 

document. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Well, I was trying to kind of 

speed up here, but we will go slower. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q The language expressed here says based on the 
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terms of this proposal the proposed plants are prohibited 

under existing law, is that correct? 

A That's what it says, yes. 

Q Why were the proposed plants prohibited under 

existing law in terms of this comment? 

MR. SASSO: Objection. This calls for a legal 

opinion. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Well, Mr. Crisp is the witness 

who is here to explain these exhibits and explain the 

ranking. And I assume if he did the ranking he had the 

rationale for why he believes these proposed plants were 

prohibited. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: To the extent that you 

3sked about his rationale, I will allow the question, but 

I think the original question had to do with why he 

thought it was reasonable under present law. Which under 

the objection I will sustain that that will call for a 

legal opinion. But to the extent you want to ask about 

his rationale for the ranking that he did, I will allow 

the question. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q What does this sentence mean to you, Mr. Crisp? 

A Within the proposal Panda proposed a total of 

2,000 megawatts to be built. 500 megawatts - -  530 

negawatts was to be allocated to Florida Power 
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Corporation, so that Florida Power Corp could use those 

530 megawatts against our reserve margin criteria. That 

left approximately 1,500 megawatts. Within discussions 

with Panda, there was information that was shared, Panda 

did not wish to commit any more megawatts than 5 0 0  because 

they intended to use those megawatts for other sales. 

From the standpoint that those other sales were not 

secured, they were not under contract, those 1,500 

megawatts were classified as merchant megawatts. From the 

standpoint of the Supreme Court law, the merchant capacity 

xsociated with those plants was a concern to us. 

Q And based on your comment it was extremely 

important to you? 

A Yes, it was. 

Q Okay. The next citation concerns litigation 

2istory, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. And you have noted here that - -  I just 

sant to make sure it wasn't me - -  that the bidder has 

?revious litigation history with FPC involving 

pestionable dealings in contract execution, 

interpretation, and implementation. To what are you 

referring in that comment? 

A I am referring to a previous contract 

relationship between Panda and Florida Power Corporation 
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where Panda submitted a proposal under a standard offer. 

Once the proposal was submitted, several of the terms and 

conditions of the proposal were altered. The terms and 

conditions of the standard offer were very specific and 

following the submittal of the proposal the terms and 

conditions that Panda provided were altered. 

Q Okay. Was that matter to your knowledge 

litigated before the Public Service Commission? 

A I believe that that matter was litigated to the 

Supreme Court. 

Q Let me ask my question again. Was that contract 

fiispute first decided by the Public Service Commission and 

:hen taken up to the Supreme Court? 

A That I don't know. 

Q Okay. As a result of that litigation, are you 

iware of the fact that a $750,000 penalty was paid by 

?anda to Florida Power Corporation? 

A I had heard of that. 

Q So you believe that is, in fact, correct? 

A It would be subject to check. I had heard of a 

:alk of some amount of money. I can't be specific to 

:hat. 

Q Okay. Did you specifically ask for a statement 

irom Panda concerning their litigation history? 

A Yes, we did. 
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Q Okay. And is that included in the materials 

supplied pursuant to Production of Documents Request 

Number l? 

A There is documentation in the discovery 

documents of that conversation. 

Q Was Panda forthcoming about their litigation 

history with Florida Power Corporation? 

A I would have to go back and check the 

documentation. 

Q Okay. But to the extent that it was provided in 

written form to FPC, that would be evidence that it was 

discussed by Panda, is that correct? 

A The information was discussed between Florida 

Power Corporation and Panda. 

Q Did Panda satisfy you with regard to that 

information? 

A From my own standpoint I had to gather other 

information. The information provided by Panda was not 

suitable for my understanding of the issues. 

Q So it didn't satisfy you? 

A I needed to learn more. 

Q Let's talk about corporate strategic factors. 

;et's see. You indicate here that you considered it 

significant that the bid was for only up to five years, is 

:hat correct? 
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A That's correct. 

Q You indicate here that market prices of 

capacity, quote, have been trending up, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q When you talk about market prices of capacity, 

are you talking about the Florida market? 

A The two are interrelated. Market prices in 

general across the eastern interconnect are trending 

upwards. Florida does not stand alone by itself. As 

prices increase within the eastern interconnect, people 

within Florida have an opportunity to either sell outside 

of Florida at higher prices, so it forces by default 

Florida's market price upward. 

Q Will the markets price trend to increase be 

mitigated as more generation is added within the State of 

Florida? 

A Not necessarily. 

Q And why would that be? 

A You are asking a question concerning supply and 

demand. Electricity is not a commodity like a candy bar 

3n a shelf. It can't be stored. It has to be matched to 

the load precisely. You can't have too much and you can't 

have not enough. 

What I'm talking about is an issue of where 

zlectricity once it is - -  once electricity prices are 
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2stablished within a market, it becomes an issue of what 

:he market will bear for electricity. If something 

iappens, and something always does, the price for 

2lectricity skyrockets. It is what the market will bear. 

You don't necessarily have an option to go out and turn 

2ff switches and turn off refrigerators and things like 

:hat, or turn off life support systems, God forbid. So 

2lectricity markets tend to skyrocket when there become 

shortages. 

Now, suppliers, whether they be - -  well, 

suppliers that don't have an obligation to serve are very, 

Jery smart in their planning processes. They know how 

nuch to build. 

Jiven region. 

nillion and just put in a plant that is not necessarily 

going to make the necessary return on investment. They 

x e  going to intend to capture that return investment. 

They are going to get their money out of that plant and 

the ratepayer is going to be the one that pays for it. 

They know how much a load is within a 

They are not going to throw down $200 

Q Let me ask the question this way. Assuming that 

supply stays the same - -  I'm sorry, assuming that demand 

stays the same, if more generation capacity is 

constructed, as you add more generation capacity in excess 

of that demand, does it force market prices downs? 

A Are you asking me that if my demand stays the 
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same that you would offer me a contract? 

Q No, I am simply asking as a general economic 

proposition for market capacity and for electric capacity 

in the State of Florida, if supply stays the same - -  

A Uh-huh. 

Q - -  and the number of generating units, the 

number of megawatts available to meet that supply 

increases - -  

A Right. 

Q - -  would it tend to depress market prices? 

A I don't believe so. 

MR. SASSO: Excuse me. You said if supply stays 

the same and the number of generating units increases to 

meet that supply. 

MS. BROWNLESS: I'm sorry. That is incorrect. 

Let me rephrase it. Thank you, Mr. Sasso. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q If demand stays the same and the amount of 

installed capacity within the state increases, would that 

tend to depress market prices? 

A I don't believe so. Here is why. Someone goes 

out and builds, for instance, a merchant plant above and 

beyond what is needed. They are going to sit back and 

relax. They are going to wait until something happens, 

whether it is a transmission line goes down or whatever, 
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and then they are going to offer their facility for sale 

to the highest bidder. That has been proven in ECAR, 

California, New York, Synergy, and other regions of the 

United States. That is what I meant by having situations 

where ratepayers are paying for plants time and time 

again. When power reaches $10,000 a megawatt hour, it is 

for a reason. It is because the merchants are going after 

what they can get, not the best possible price for the 

ratepayer. 

Q And has that scenario which you just indicated 

where a merchant plant does not sell capacity until the 

price is at a premium happened in the State of Florida? 

A To the best of my knowledge there is only one 

merchant-owned facility in the state, and I couldn't 

speculate on what they have done. 

Q So you don't know whether that has actually been 

naterialized here? 

A From my past experience as a merchant marketer, 

1 know it is done. 

Q But you don't know that it has been done in 

Florida? 

A I don't know that it has been done in Florida. 

Q Let's talk about the effect of the financing on 

?PC. And you indicate here that if you accepted Panda's 

iroposal you would have to keep the Hines Unit 2 option 
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alive, I think is the way you put it. Is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q The dollar figure that is given there, and we 

won't mention it because I don't know if it is appropriate 

to. Does that relate to one or two pieces of that 

equipment? 

A I'm sorry, someone coughed when you were 

finishing that statement. 

Q There is a dollar figure given at the very 

bottom there? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Okay. Does that relate to one of the pieces of 

equipment by the manufacturer listed or two of the pieces 

Df equipment by the manufacturer listed? 

A To the best of my knowledge that is one piece of 

tquipment. 

Q Okay. And do you know - -  

A Perhaps it would be better for Mr. Major to 

zlarify that at a later point. 

Q Thank you. And do you know when the payment 

nentioned here would have been due? 

A That is for Mr. Major. 

Q Sure. On the next page with regard to the 

palifications and experience, which is the first bullet 

iaragraph? 
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A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Okay. You indicate that Panda has an aggressive 

development program, is that correct? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q And that you think it is, quote, likely to tax 

their ability to successfully finance and operate all of 

these new assets, is that correct? 

A That is what it says, yes, ma'am. 

Q Okay. Did you go to the financial market and 

specifically make inquiries as to whether Panda could, in 

fact, finance the proposed unit? 

A No, we did not. 

Q With regard to the potential impact of this 

?lant on your cost of capital, is it fair to say that the 

imputed debt would be - -  would have a minimum impact 

2ecause it was only for a five-year period? 

A It was because of the short duration of your 

iroject, that is correct. 

Q And it obviously would have had more impact if 

it had been for the entire 25-year life? 

A And if it had been a higher reflective of 

mother type of capacity or something like that. There 

ire many factors use in imputed debt. 

Q Okay. I noticed that you deemed that not to be 

:oo significant? 
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A In the case of the Panda - -  yes. In the case of 

the Panda proposal, because of the shortness of the 

contract and the minimal amount of the overall capacity 

exposure, the net effect of imputed debt was not a 

significant issue. 

Q So it was a good thing on the part of Panda, bi 

you didn't give that a lot of weight, is that correct? 

A Well, I think it was a minimal impact. Or, 

t 

excuse me, of minimal significance from a standpoint that 

it had minimal impact to the overall financial dollar 

effect of the cost of the contract. 

Q I got it. Let's talk a little bit about the 

backup fuel supply. The Panda project did not propose an 

alternative fuel on site, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q And Panda indicated that fuel issues would be 

dealt with by the fact that they would have two power 

?lants with two sources of natural gas fuel, is that 

iorrect? 

A As I understand it, yes. 

Q And that Panda would have the ability to back 

2aul fuel from power plant number one to power plant 

number two? 

A As I understand it, yes. 

Q Okay. You indicate that this was an unusual and 
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potentially tenuous arrangement? 

A That's correct. 

Q Did you make any inquiries as to whether this 

type of arrangement had actually been used by Panda in 

other states or been used by other suppliers? 

A No, we did not because it was not material to 

the State of Florida. From our standpoint what we were 

looking at was fuel diversity. We were looking at it from 

a standpoint of exposure to natural gas spikes. When you 

have distillate oil in storage you can shift from one fuel 

to the next and protect the ratepayer from price exposure. 

You can also protect the ratepayer from potential 

disruptions in gas flow by having a specific dual fuel. 

Q So with regard specifically to interruptions in 

gas flow you didn't believe that having access to two 

pipelines would mitigate that risk? 

A There was minimal mitigation of the risk from a 

dual pipeline configuration. Back hauling gas from one 

plant to another may be something that is done in other 

states around the United States. It has not been done to 

my knowledge in Florida, and from our standpoint it was a 

concern. 

Q Okay. And to the extent one of these potential 

natural gas suppliers would be - -  would have a different 

pipeline configuration than FGT, that would not have 
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mitigated the risk of not being able to receive natural 

gas? 

A We have not seen that level of a configuration 

within the State of Florida. That is our concern. 

Q Okay. So basically the issue was that 

alternative gas supplier number two has not yet come into 

existence? 

A That was part of the issue. And the other issue 

is exactly what is gas supplier number two. Where are 

they going to be located, how are they going to be 

structured within the state. And, once again, I am going 

to go back to the dual fuel issue. Distillate is a 

benefit for several pricing and reliability issues. I 

think that is the primary concern that we have to focus on 

is dual fuel capability. 

Q So you were more concerned about having an 

alternative fuel actually on-site than about the 

availability of natural gas? 

A I think it is a dual pronged issue. 

Q Okay. With regard to having alternative fuel on 

site, how much alternative fuel does the Hines Energy 

Unit 2 have on-site? 

A The Hines 2 unit on the site of the Hines Energy 

Complex is currently configured for seven full days of 

3peration, 3 - 1 / 2  days on each unit, Hines 1 and Hines 2 .  
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Q So to the extent that it provides fuel diversity 

for that unit or alternate fuel for that unit, it only 

does so to the extent of 3-1/2 days? 

A That can be a tremendous value to the ratepayer 

in that it can avoid - -  if there is an interruption to a 

natural gas flow on one pipeline, then the ratepayers 

would be exposed to spiking gas prices on another 

pipeline, so the distillate can be used to avoid price 

gouging from the other pipeline. 

Q In the short term? 

A Certainly. And that can add up to millions and 

millions of dollars. And that is millions and millions of 

dollars to the ratepayers that are very valuable to them. 

Q Okay. With regard to the technology, is the 

3E-7FA technology roughly equivalent to the 501F 

technology of Siemens-Westinghouse? 

A I would say that it is roughly equivalent to the 

501FD technology. 

Q Okay. Do you have any reason to believe that - -  

3r do you have any - -  did you have any reason to believe 

that Panda could not get adequate service from FGT or an 

2lternative pipeline to supply the plant? 

A Can you please restate that. 

Q Yes. I'm looking at firmness of fuel supply 

iere? 
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A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Did you have any reason to believe that Panda 

could not get an adequate amount of natural gas to power 

these plants? 

A We were understanding that Panda was leaning on 

the alternate gas supplier, and that was an issue of 

firmness . 
Q Okay. On firmness and reliability, for power 

firmness you have indicated as a pro the fact that Panda 

would commit that it would supply your 530 megawatts of 

capacity from both of its proposed facilities, is that 

correct? 

A That is an - -  it was identified as a pro, but we 

had, once again, concerns about the way that Panda was 

going to be able to provide that level of firmness in 

?ewer because of the status of the other plants being 

3edicated to merchant activity. 

Q Well, are two plants better than one? 

A Certainly. 

Q Okay. With regard to supplier performance 

3ssurances, did you have those same concerns about 

3idder B? 

A We had concerns of a similar nature with 

3idder B. 

Q Okay. How significant did you consider the 
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ability of Power Corp to buy the proposed units from 

either Panda o r  Bidder B? 

A I'm sorry, where are you? 

Q I am on Page 4, purchase options. 

A Thank you. We didn't consider it to be a big 

consideration. It was minimal. 

Q Okay. Did either alternative allow you to do 

that? 

A I would have to check on Bidder B. Bidder B, in 

fact, offered a right of first refusal to purchase the 

goject assets at the end of the 25-year term. 

Q With regard to power deliverability you indicate 

that there would need to be additional transmission 

network upgrades, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. Did you make any independent analysis or 

inquiry from your own transmission department as to the 

status of Panda's negotiations with you for those 

Ipgrades? 

A Ma'am, we have a concrete wall. I am in 

yeneration planning and we have a concrete wall between us 

m d  transmission planning because we don't share that 

information. For instance, if you go to transmission and 

isk them for a study and give them a lot details about 

[ourself, then if we were communicating with transmission 
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information on you might inadvertently come to us. So, I 

don't know the answer to that. You would have to speak 

with someone in transmission. 

Q I am looking, again, at the next page where it 

says FPC system reliability, pro, power deliverability. 

Where it says Panda has made a good faith effort to pursue 

the study agreements needed to support development of 

these facilities. When you say these facilities, are you 

talking about transmission facilities? 

A I believe that would be correct. This 

information was provided by our transmission people. 

Q All right. So, it is a transmission constraint 

or the need for additional transmission is considered as a 

con under system reliability, but a pro under system - -  

I'm sorry. As a con on Page 4 under power deliverability, 

and then a pro on Page 5 under power deliverability? 

A I think the reason that that was listed as a pro 

is because Panda has made a good faith effort. We were 

trying to give you the benefit of the doubt of going after 

something to try to resolve it. 

Q Are you aware of whether Power currently has a 

request for a generation interconnection study? 

A With who? 

Q With you, Florida Power Corporation? 

A I'm sorry, did you say that Panda has a 
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generation interconnection request? 

Q Yes. 

A This is part of the things that I would not know 

about. This gets back to generation queuing and things 

like that. And when we are planning our generation assets 

for the Commission's benefit, it is not equitable for the 

generation planning side to know about things because that 

is considered confidential to the transmission part of the 

company. 

Q Okay. If, in fact, Panda had such a generation 

interconnection study agreement, had paid $20,000 in order 

to have Power Corp complete a generation interconnection 

study, had gotten a generation interconnection study from 

Florida Power Corporation, would you deem that to be a 

good faith effort on Panda's part to work out any 

interconnection or transmission problems? 

MR. SASSO: I would like to object, Mr. 

Zhairman, about the relevance of this. I think we are 

going way afield of the issues in this case. We are now 

talking about what Panda may or may have done after the 

selection decision was made. We have spent quite a little 

nJhile on this. We are consuming the better part of the 

2fternoon with a lot of stuff which is of marginal 

interest at most, and I would object to this going any 

Further in this area. 
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COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Ms. Brownless. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Let me ask it this way. Is that 

the basis for which the statement is made that Panda has 

made a good faith effort to - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I am assuming you are 

restating your question? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Yes. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q Is that the basis for that statement or do you 

know? 

A I don't know. I would assume that would be the 

basis for it. 

Q Okay. On dispatch flexibility, did Panda 

indicate that it would consider connecting to Power Corp's 

economic dispatch center? 

A After additional questions, answers, and 

dialogue, Panda had said that they would consider. 

Q Would this have turned from a con into a pro if 

Panda, in fact, agreed to that? 

A I believe it depends on a number of criteria 

including how the connection was made and the flexibility 

for dispatch was actually achieved with Panda. 

Q If you could dispatch Panda's unit just as any 

other generating unit of your system, would you consider 

that to be a pro? 
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A That would be beneficial, yes. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you. 

Mr. Sasso, I didn't record here whether your 

exhibits had been not only offered, but moved into 

evidence. Have they been? 

MR. SASSO: They have not been moved in yet. 

After the conclusion of cross and redirect then I will 

move them in. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q When did you notify Panda Energy that its 

proposal had been denied? 

A A telephone call was made on May 30th followed 

up with a letter on May 31st. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Okay. I am going to let Mr. 

Sass0 look at this next block of material and see if he 

has some confidentiality concerns with regard to it. And 

if he does, then I will request the Commission's 

?ermission to place it in the appropriate packages for 

zonsideration. Can I do that? These are portions of 

responses to the staff's first production of documents. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: First, let's see if staff 

3lready has it. 

MS. BROWNLESS: This is basically correspondence 

2etween Power Corp and Panda that was provided to the 
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staff . 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: You don't have it? 

MS. BROWNLESS: It does not concern any other 

correspondence. 

MS. HART: That is not part of our exhibit 

package. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Let's let Mr. Sasso 

review it then. 

MR. SASSO: If it is Florida Power Corporation's 

zorrespondence with Panda, we would have no problem with 

that. No objection to the confidentiality of this. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Then I can just pass it out like 

I would a regular exhibit? 

MR. SASSO: Yes. 

3Y MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q Mr. Crisp, do you recognize this as a portion of 

:he materials which were provided by Power Corporation in 

response to Staff's Production of Documents Request Number 

l? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Okay. Are the answers contained herein true and 

zorrect to the best of your knowledge and belief? These 

2re accurate copies? 

A They appear to be. To the best of my knowledge 

:hey appear to be the similar documents, yes. 
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MS. BROWNLESS: We would like to mark this for 

.dentification as Exhibit Number 8 .  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Yes, show it marked as 

Cxhibit Number 8. 

MS. BROWNLESS: And we would like to move this 

nto evidence at this time. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Without objection, show it 

idmi t ted . 
(Exhibit 8 marked for identification and 

idmitted into the record.) 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Do we have any particular 

:itle? You said Power Corp's responses to Staff's 

Interrogatory Number - -  I missed the number. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Production of Documents Request 

Jumber 1. This is just a portion of that response. A 

selected portion that applies to information between Power 

Zorp and Panda. 

MR. SASSO: Just as a clarification, the last 

two pages of this composite exhibit are not part of the 

correspondence between Florida Power and Panda. 

MS. BROWNLESS: That was included in that same 

POD as part of it. 

MR. SASSO: That's fine. But these are - -  I 

just want to be clear that these aren't - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: These are part of your 
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petition, aren't they? 

MR. SASSO: This is part of our site plan. 

MS. HART: It might be well to identify this by 

the page numbers. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Okay. It is FPC - -  I'm just 

looking at the little stamps at the bottom - -  FPC 012, 

013, 015, 016, 017, 018, 019, 023, and 024. 

MR. SASSO: I'm sorry, what numbers - -  

MS. BROWNLESS: I'm looking on the right-hand 

corner here. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Bottom of the page. 

MS. BROWNLESS: You've got numbers? 

MR. SASSO: We have different numbers. 

MS. HART: It starts with FPC? 

MR. SASSO: Yes. 

MS. BROWNLESS: It starts with FPC. 

MR. SASSO: We think we have figured it out. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Okay. I just want to make sure 

you don't have any problem with regard to 023 and 024, is 

that all right, is that correct? 

MR. SASSO: That's correct. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you. 

BY MS. BROWNLESS: 

Q Does your May 30th, 2000 memo report what 

nappened when you called Panda? 
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A It reports what happened when an employee for 

who I am responsible, Michael Rib and Rebecca Jensen 

(phonetic), called Mr. Sam Doaks of Panda. 

Q Okay. Did Power Corporation at that time reveal 

the type of analysis that were done to compare the bids? 

A According to the memo, FPC discussed it and 

completed an in-depth review of the pricing and terms and 

the decision not to pursue further discussion was based on 

a fairly detailed analysis of both price and nonprice 

factors. Were you asking did we go into a detailed 

explanation of all of the modeling techniques? 

Q Or just an analysis of the fact that you did a 

PWRR analysis; we did this, we did that, here is what we 

found about your nonprice attributes that we didn't 

appreciate or that we thought were detrimental? 

A I don't know if the conversation went into that 

level of detail or not. 

Q Okay. Did you indicate at that time that Power 

Corp was going to build Hines Unit 2?  

A At that point we indicated that as a result of 

this decision and as a result of other decisions that we 

dere leaning towards a self-build option, but we did not 

indicate that we would be pursuing a self-build option. 

Q The last bullet point indicates that you were 

2sked if FPC was going to develop a short list, is that 
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A That question was asked. 

Q And how did you answer that? 

A We had a short list to begin with, ma'am. We 

 only had two bidders. 
detail in the initial screening and the supplemental 

screening. So when we reached this point in this decision 

we said that based on the fact that we only had two 

bidders to go with, we would not be going any further. We 

did not plan on publishing a short list. 

We went into a great degree of 

Q Would it have been fair for Mr. Doaks to 

conclude from this that the solicitation process was at an 

end? 

A Yes. 

Q I will just pass out a letter dated May 31st, 

2000. Do you recognize this letter, Mr. Crisp? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q And what is it? 

A This is a confirmation that we had not selected 

the Panda proposal. 

Q Was a similar letter sent to Bidder B? 

A I believe it was. 

Q Also sent on the same date? 

A I believe so. 

Q So as of May 31st, 2000, for all practical 
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purposes the RFP was closed? 

A That's correct. 

Q We would like to mark this - -  let me ask this 

question. Is this letter true and correct to the best of 

your knowledge and belief? 

A Yes, it is. 

MS. BROWNLESS: We would like to mark this as 

Exhibit Number 9. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Show it marked as Exhibit 

Number 9. 

MS. BROWNLESS: And ask that it be admitted into 

evidence. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Without objection, show it 

admitted. 

(Exhibit 9 marked for identification and entered 

into the record. ) 

MS. BROWNLESS: That is all I have, sir. Thank 

you. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Staff 

MS. HART: Mr. Crisp, we are going to be 

bringing you staff's confidential and nonconfidential 

exhibits. Mr. Chairman, I ask that the nonconfidential 

version be identified as Exhibit 10. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. And do you 
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have a short title for that? 

MS. HART: Staff Composite Exhibit - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Power Corpls Composite 

Exhibit l? 

MS. HART: I'm sorry, I was looking at the wrong 

one. Responses to Staff Interrogatories 1 through 3, 6, 

11 through 14, 16 through 18, 21 through 23, 30, 36 

through 38, as well as answers to POD Numbers 4 and 5, and 

a late-filed exhibit from the deposition of John Crisp. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. You are just 

doing the deposition exhibit, not the deposition 

transcript? 

MS. HART: That's correct. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Very well. 

Proceed. I'm sorry, the confidential, is that marked 

separately? Is this the same one? This is the same 

2xhibit that we just marked. 

MR. ELIAS: That was previously marked as 

Exhibit Number 6 along with the redacted. 

(Exhibit 10 marked for identification.) 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MS. HART: 

Q Mr. Crisp, were these documents produced under 

(our supervision? 

A In checking through these documents and making 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



281 

1 

2 

0 3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

15  

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

sure that all the interrogatories match, yes. To the best 

of my knowledge, yes. 

Q Okay. We are going to start with the need 

study, which was previously identified as Exhibit 5. 

Looking at Exhibit C, would you confirm that this is a 

copy of Commission Order Number PSC-99-2507-S-EU? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Are you familiar with this order? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q Did this order require Florida Power Corporation 

to achieve a minimum 20 percent reserve margin by the 

summer of 2004? 

MR. SASSO: I have an objection to the question 

as asked. This is a stipulation. Mr. Crisp is not an 

sttorney, of course, and may not appreciate the 

distinction between an order mandating action and a 

stipulation by which parties agree to take action which r~ 

reviewed and approved by the Commission. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I understood your question 

20 be his awareness of it, is that correct? 

MS. HART: That is correct. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I will allow the question 

2s to his awareness. 

THE WITNESS: I am aware of the stipulation. 

3Y MS. HART: 
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Q Did Florida Power pursuant to this stipulation 

agree to have a 20  percent reserve margin by the summer of 

2 0 0 4 ?  

A Prior to this stipulation? 

Q No, as a result of this stipulation. 

A As a result of this stipulation, yes, ma'am. 

MR. SASSO: Excuse me, I would like to note 

another objection. The stipulation is in the need study, 

it is in the record, will be in the record. It is 

crertainly in the Commission's files and it speaks for 

itself. And I don't mean to be an obstructionist, 

Ys. Hart, if you don't mean anything by your question, but 

you are using shorthand which abbreviates the terms of the 

stipulation and may not fairly represent it. I'm not sure 

it is necessary to restate or recharacterize terms of the 

locument which will be part of the record. 

MS. HART: I don't know what the objection is, 

3ut - -  

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Well, the question has 

2een asked and answered - -  that question has been asked 

m d  answered anyway. But I understand the concern is that 

-f you are going to refer to the stipulation you may want 

:o just read into the record that part of the stipulation 

:hat you are referring to and I think that will cover that 

:oncern. 
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MS. HART: That's all right, we can move on. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. 

BY MS. HART: 

Q Moving along to Appendix D in the need study, 

Page 69?  

A I'm there. 

Q Is this document from FPC's ten-year site plan 

filed in April of 2000? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q And does it show FPC's capacity, demand, and 

reserve margins at the time of winter peak? 

A Yes, it does. 

Q Does this table assume that Hines Unit 2 is 

brought into service in November of 2003? 

A That's correct. 

Q And that is the proposal, is that right? 

A That's correct. 

Q What is the projected reserve margin for winter 

2003? 

A 26 - -  excuse me, 25 percent. 

Q Okay. And that is with Hines 2 on-line? 

A Yes. And I would like to add that the reserve 

nargin in the winter of 2000/2001 of 16 percent is 

zomposed almost entirely of DSM, demand-side management 

2ptions. So an increase from 16 to 25 percent shows the 
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net generation that we need to add to compliment the fleet 

to keep ourselves from being exposed to DSM cancellations. 

Q On the next page, Page 70, I believe, could you 

explain what is shown on this page? 

A I would be happy to, ma'am. Schedule 8 shows 

all of the planned changes, whether they be additions or 

retirements, to the Florida Power Corporation fleet across 

a ten-year time frame. 

Q And is Hines 2 reflected there? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q Okay. 

A It is Hines Energy Complex about midway down the 

clolumn, Number 2. 

Q I see it. What is the number for the winter 

negawatt net capability? 

A 567 megawatts. And summer capability is 495 

negawatts. For our proposal we are stating that it is 

iominal 530-megawatt plant. 

Q Okay. If Hines 2 were not brought into service 

i s  proposed, looking back at the analysis done on Page 69, 

if a similar analysis was done without Hines 2, would you 

igree that FPC's winter reserve margin for 2003 and 4 

vould be approximately 18 percent? 

A Ma'am, I believe that that was a part of some 

idditional questions that staff asked, so I would like to 
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have a moment to dig that up. 

Q Certainly. 

A I believe I'm ready now 

Q Okay. Have you found a 

figure? 

A The third question that 

calculation of that 

staff asked us to 

provide at the end of the deposition was provide a 

tabulation of system reserve margins and the base 

expansion plan that removes Hines 2 and accommodates a 

50-megawatt capacity divestiture. 

Q Right. 

A For the purposes of this discussion, the 

50-megawatt divestiture makes such a small impact on the 

reserve margins, I think we can say that the bulk of the 

impact is Hines 2 in these tables. Well, we have got it 

without the divestiture, with the divestiture. We can 

look at both columns. 

Q Okay. Is that what you are referring to, is 

that Exhibit 10 that we have identified, Bate stamps 

00065? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q And it does indeed show for the winter of 2003 

and 2004 with Hines 2 removed a reserve margin of 18.4 

percent? 

A Yes, ma'am. And that is a considerable exposure 
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of DSM, as I might add. 

Q Would an 18.4 percent reserve margin in the 

winter of 2003 or 4 violate the Commission's order on 

reserve margin? 

MR. SASSO: Again, objection as to the 

characterization of that order. Just to be clear, I don't 

want to be cute about it, but it is not an order. It was 

an agreement by the utilities voluntarily to increase 

their reserve margin planning criterion from 15 to 20 

percent. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: No less binding though. 

MR. SASSO: A minimum of 20 percent. 

MS. HART: I will try to refer to it as an 

agreement or the stipulation. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. 

MS. HART: Do you need me to restate the 

quest ion? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: No, I think we can 

proceed, with the proviso that it will be referred to as 

an agreement more so than a Commission order. 

THE WITNESS: I will answer your question if you 

would please restate it. 

MS. HART: Okay. 

BY MS. HART: 

Q Would an 18.4 percent reserve margin in the 
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winter of 2003/4 violate that stipulated agreement as to 

reserve margins? 

A No, it would not. But from the standpoint of 

our planning judgment, we determine that we needed to move 

forward the 20 percent that was agreed to in the summer of 

'04 up to the winter of 103/104, but specifically because 

of the DSM exposure and our increasing loads. 

Q What is the projected winter net capability of 

Hines 2? 

A 567 megawatts. 

Q And how much of that capability is necessary to 

reach a 20 percent reserve margin as you have agreed? 

A In what year? 

Q 2003 and 4? 

A I would estimate that - -  let me answer it this 

way, the accurate way, which is all of Hines 2 is needed 

to keep us from losing our demand-side management 

customers. NOW, in order to achieve a 20 percent reserve 

margin, which is a minimum, which is a number that is a 

baseline, approximately 120, 125 megawatts subject to 

check. But the important thing here is that the full 530 

megawatts is needed. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Have you projected an 

attrition rate? 

THE WITNESS: We lost 80 megawatts worth of DSM 
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customers over the past two years. As we have studied the 

impact and we have seen our loads increasing and we see 

the correlation between forced outages during the 

summertime and the increased dependence on DSM, that is 

why we are projecting our concern. And I think staff 

concurs with us because of the write-up that we received 

in a recent ten-year site plan summary where staff said, 

yes, we are very concerned about this. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. 

BY MS. HART: 

Q Given your answer to the previous question that 

it is about 130 megawatts to come up to 20 percent, would 

you then agree that the 2003/4 winter reserve is projected 

to be approximately 440 megawatts above a 20 percent 

reserve margin? 

A Yes. And that will be 440 megawatts of concrete 

2nd steel in the ground versus approximately 1,000 

negawatts worth of DSM capability. So that 400-some-odd 

negawatts worth of concrete and steel if you look at a 

reserve stack, it will be at the bottom and the DSM will 

De at the top. We will immediately go into that 

generation if we have a forced outage, which that happens. 

So, does that - -  is that clear? 

Q Yes. 

A From a standpoint of above and beyond, it is not 
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an above and beyond, it is exactly what we have got to 

have to meet forced outage rates and increases in weather. 

Q Thank you. That is clear. Again, the 20 

percent reserve margin must be met by the summer of 2004 

and not the winter of 2003/2004, is that correct? 

A According to the stipulation, it was agreed to 

in the summer of 2004. But our planning judgment, because 

of the issues we have talked about, we have decided it was 

very important to move it backwards to the winter, to 

cover the winter of '03/'04. 

Q What was the basis for that planning judgment, 

can you describe some of the considerations of that? 

A I would be happy to. Throughout the year, and 

this was concurrent with the generic reserve margin 

docket. Actually it started off prior to the generic 

reserve margin docket. We were doing several operations 

and sensitivity analyses. We gathered information from 

the DSM programs to see what the cancellations were and 

how much we were using the DSM programs, and we also 

correlated that or compared that to our forced outages of 

our larger units. And we found that we have - -  we have 

four or five large units. And as we lose a large unit 

during a peaking period we were going into DSM very 

quickly and were leaning on DSM very hard. 

So these sensitivity analyses were showing us 
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that we did not have the robustness of concrete and steel 

to keep us away from that overburdened use of DSM that was 

causing us the cancellations. What happens when we get 

into the cancellations is that takes megawatts out of the 

reserves, so it is kind of like a death spiral. The more 

cancellations there are the more you lean on DSM. And 

then the more you lean on DSM the more cancellations there 

are. 

Q Thank you. Couldn't this additional amount 

needed to reach 20 percent have been met by installing 

either a combustion turbine or purchasing power from 

another source in order to more closely match capacity 

with demand? 

A Should I handle those as individual - -  should I 

address them one-by-one? 

Q Sure. 

A As far as a combustion turbine, to consider 

that, that might solve the problem for one year, but then 

we would have a less cost-effective plant on the ground to 

serve for a 25-year life span. In other words, yes, you 

can get yourself up to some rate of 20 percent, but what 

have you done to help yourself in avoiding the problems 

with DSM? Nothing. And, in addition, you have added a 

fleet to your component - -  or a component to your fleet, 

your peaking fleet where you have already got a good solid 
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peaking fleet. So the net effect of that was a pretty 

significant increase in cost, production cost, when you 

took a look at what would happen if we forced a peaker 

onto our fleet at that point in time. 

Purchased power contracts, we are constantly in 

the market working with other marketers, other companies 

to try to find out what we can gather from the open market 

in terms of maybe one-year, or two-year, or three-year 

agreements. The market is continuing to rise as far as 

purchased power prices are concerned. And if you add up 

the total amount of dollars that you would have to pay for 

seasonal blocks of capacity call options to cover this, it 

greatly exceeds the amount you would have to pay for a 

generating unit. 

So the ranking is a combined cycle gets you the 

megawatts you need at the best possible cost, and then 

behind that along with the bidder options are other 

Dptions such as peakers and short-term blocks of purchased 

power, if you will. Simply not cost-effective and they 

don't cover our concerns with DSM exposure. 

Q With that said, would the installation of the 

zombustion turbine result in lower capital costs compared 

to Hines 2 in the first five years? 

A I'm sorry, please restate. 

Q Repeat or restate? 
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Restate. 

Wouldn't the installation of a combustion 

result in lower capital costs compared to the 

self-build unit in the first five years? 

If you did it at a later point in time? I'm 

something. 

No, in the first five years as an alternative? 

As an alternative to the Hines 2 option? 

Uh-huh. 

It would cost more. 

Capital costs would be more? 

Well, the option is worth 25 to 30 million or a 

significant amount of money on the Hines 2 option. So to 

gather that option and bring the value of that option back 

:o the ratepayer, the Hines 2 option gives you the net 

zotal cost that is less for the ratepayer. So the revenue 

requirements for the ratepayer are considerably less with 

:he Hines 2 option. 

Q So you are talking about the option on the 

3quipment? 

A Correct. 

Q Okay. 

A The variable O&M and the operating costs, if you 

:ompare two units side-by-side, are roughly the same. 

Q Okay. So let me make sure I'm clear here. You 
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3re talking about total revenue requirements, is that 

right? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Okay. Just on the capital costs alone, wouldn't 

:he combustion turbine be more cost-effective than the 

lines 2 unit in the first five years? 

A What do you include in the capital costs, ma'am? 

Q Installed costs. 

A Well, the Hines 2 unit, the total installed cost 

€or the Hines 2 unit is approximately $198 million. That 

is 25 to $30 million less than an equivalent combined 

Zycle unit. Now, that is installed cost. It is 

Zonsiderably less expensive. 

Q I'm sorry, I appreciate your indulgence. We are 

zalking about comparing a combustion turbine to Hines 2, 

lot another combined cycle? 

A I understand. The cost of a combined cycle, the 

zapital cost on a megawatt-for-megawatt basis, let's say 

y'ou had 500 megawatts worth of simple cycle combustion 

turbines compared to 500 megawatts worth of combined 

cycle. I believe I can look that up for you. Because one 

of the interesting things that we are seeing is that the 

options alone bring the value of that combined cycle down 

pretty significantly and make it a pretty exceptional 

deal. Let's say you replaced - -  and I'm working from Page 
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34 of the need study. Let's say that Hines 2 - -  nominal 

clapacity of 530 megawatts, the total capital cost. 

Q I'm sorry, which page are you on? 

A I'm on Page 34. 

Q Of? 

A Of the need study. I apologize. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Is this the page that says Table 

7 and Table 8 ?  

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am, that's it. 

MS. HART: Thank you. 

THE WITNESS: Are you there? 

MS. HART: Yes, I'm sorry. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. If we are looking at, 

iccording to this table, Hines 2 at $165 million, and if 

le were to purchase three advanced combustion turbine F 

iachines at 165 megawatts each, that would be three times 

.65. That is roughly 495 megawatts. So you are in the 

)allpark compared to the Hines unit for a total number of 

iegawatts. Three times roughly $45,000, unless my math 

'ails me, is approximately $135 million. 

So you have got about a $30 million reduction, 

,et the total cost of energy from those peaking units is 

oing to be considerably higher. So when you run the 

osts of that through your production model, you are going 

o wind up with a net significant increase in overall cost 
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to the ratepayer. 

Q Okay. I understand your explanation, and that 

is comparing 500 to 500? 

A Trying to. 

Q Right. 

A Roughly. 

Q Why would you need to buy three combustion 

turbines to create 500 megawatts when all you need is 130? 

A We don't need 130, ma'am. We need 530 

megawatts, as specified by our concerns over the overall 

growth rates, our DSM program, our exposure to DSM 

cancellations. We explained this in the ten-year site 

plan workshop, Commissioners, where we are almost totally 

exposed to DSM in our reserves and we are trying to get up 

to a point to where we have got some concrete and steel we 

can lean on. That is why we need the 500 megawatts, not 

100 megawatts. 100 megawatts, we would go buy that in a 

heartbeat. I'm sorry, when you lose a coal unit or 

something like that, you would go past that 100 megawatts 

very quickly. 

Q Okay. Let's move to Page 68 of the ten-year 

site plan, which is Appendix D. Are you with me? 

A Yes, ma'am. I'm sorry. 

Q That's okay. Does this provide FPC's capacity, 

demand, and reserve margins at the time of summer peak? 
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A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Okay. I'm going to go through a similar 

examination as we did awhile ago talking about the winter. 

For the year 2004, would you agree that FPC's summer 

reserve margin without Hines 2 would be 22 percent? And 

that may require us to go back to Exhibit 10. 

A Yes, ma'am, I would agree with that. 

Q Page 65, 00065. 

A And, once again, we are talking about 

approximately 1500 megawatts worth of reserves of which 

the vast majority of that is DSM. 

Q Would you agree that the need for Hines 2 at 

this time is an economic one and not a reliability need? 

A I don't believe so. It is a reliability need, 

it is augmented by superb economics. That is what I have 

been talking about with relationship to these factors in 

the ten-year site plan. Reliability comes first and then 

the economics provide the best possible solution to the 

ratepayer . 
Q Okay. Would Hines 2 and the corresponding 

increase in FPC's reserve margin allow the company a 

greater opportunity to make wholesale sales? 

A I don't believe so, ma'am, and here is the 

reason why. We may go into the market on occasion to make 

Jery, very short-term non-firm system sales, but they are 
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just that. They are from the system and we do that as a 

means of bringing value back to the ratepayer. For 

instance, if this goes out to a contract, they are going 

to be the ones taking the revenues back to them. We will 

be bringing the value back to the ratepayer if we have 

that opportunity. 

Now, from our standpoint, as I explained before, 

when we are in a situation of having, say, 1,500 megawatts 

worth of reserves and the bulk of that is DSMs, 

demand-side management, what we would like to do is have 

the ability to go straight into that additional 500 

megawatts of concrete and steel. If we lose a coal unit 

for a forced outage rate, guess what, that is right where 

we are going to go. We are going to run that Hines 2 

plant - -  not the Hines 2 plant, but what is next in the 

stack for 500 megawatts to augment the DSM program. That 

means we have got the flexibility to stay off the DSM 

program as much as possible through these periods where we 

have got long-term exposure to increased peaks in demands. 

So from a standpoint of making sales, you are 

kind of asking me are you going to go out and sell those 

DSM megawatts? No, ma'am. NOW, when we have excess 

physical megawatts, excess generation megawatts, for 

instance, in the shoulder months of the year, in September 

and October when it is not very hot and we have an 
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opportunity to go out and do day-in, day-out system 

nonfirm sales, sales that we can go back and bring back in 

case we have a catastrophe on the system, then, yes, it is 

our obligation, it is our fiduciary responsibility to 

bring those megawatts back to the ratepayer and to bring 

those dollars back to the ratepayer. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: You may have said this 

already, and if you did forgive me. But is there some 

kind of analysis which balances the economics of DSM 

versus the build option? Where you have done that, but at 

the time of dispatch? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, we do that, and we 

clontinue to do it on a regular basis as far as the value 

2f the DSM programs. We are continually looking at the 

clost-effectiveness of the DSM programs. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: So here is my concern, if 

someone buys onto the DSM program, I would hate that we 

dould pursue building options to avoid them having to 

sncounter the risk of being on the DSM program. Do you 

mderstand? If you are going to get rid of DSM, then you 

get rid of it and you don't sign up customers for it. If 

jou sign up customers for it, then they ought to have to 

incur the risk, and we ought not to be building the load. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, absolutely. And our DSM 

?rogram, in fact, supports exactly what you are saying. 
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Ne are lowering our exposure through attrition. People 

dho want to leave the summertime DSM program, we are 

lowering those numbers, and as people move out of their 

houses, and we are lowering our exposure that way. The 

dinter program is cost-effective and we are continuing 

dith the winter program. But the summer program, we are 

allowing it to attrit downward. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. 

3Y MS. HART: 

Q Mr. Crisp, how long have you been with FPC? 

A About a year and a half. 

Q Sometime in '99? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Okay. Do you know if during that time in 

Jarious management decisions has FPC assumed deregulation 

Mould occur at some time in the future? 

A Ma'am, I don't think that we assumed 

leregulation is going to happen at a certain point in 

zime. What we do is we look at, for instance, from our 

IRP program, we look at that purely from a regulated 

standpoint. Now, from a financial arena, they may take 

3ecisions from asset additions and do financial 

sensitivities according to what they might think might 

iappen out at a point in time. But that is just trying to 

3alance the effect of we are in a regulated environment, 
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what if we go into a deregulated environment. 

Q So is your answer yes? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Bear with me a moment. I want to go on to 

clarify the record a little bit about some answers, 

different answers to interrogatories and things that there 

have been some confusion about. In staff's 

nonconfidential exhibits, it is Bates Number 15, that is 

Exhibit 10. Okay. This is asking for a present worth 

revenue requirement for four different alternatives 

including the proposed Hines 2. 

A Once again, I'm confused with the documents. 

Q I understand. 

A Can you help me? 

Q It is Exhibit 10, staff's composite exhibit. 

MR. SASSO: Do we have a page number, please? 

MS. HART: Page Number 00015. 

MS. BROWNLESS: It is response to staff 

Interrogatory 13. 

THE WITNESS: Staff Interrogatory 13? 

MS. HART: Right. 

THE WITNESS: I'm there. 

3Y MS. HART: 

Q Okay. Again, we asked for a present worth 

revenue requirements analysis for four different combined 
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cycle - -  four different alternatives, including Hines 1. 

I mean, Hines 2, excuse me. 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Okay. Do you recall that the analysis of 

Hines 2 was not included in the answer to this? 

A Yes, ma'am. I believe as we discussed at the 

deposition I referred you to interrogatory - -  I believe it 

is Interrogatory Number 16. 

Q Right. 

A Which says provide a PWRR analysis for the base 

expansion plan. 

Q Okay. And is that Bates Numbers 00023 and 24? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Okay. Good. I wanted to clarify that for 

everybody. If you will turn to Page Number 29. 

A I'm there. 

Q Which is Interrogatory 21. And also to the 

confidential exhibit, Bates Number 5 for Staff 

Interrogatory 21. We're trying to get to them over here, 

too. Okay. Are the dollars reflected in these charts, 

are those in billions? 

A Let me explain something. Yes, they are. This 

is the total effect of the entire Florida Power 

Corporation production fleet. So what you are looking at 

is a production cost - -  do you remember how we talked 
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about how you put one unit into the overall stack and you 

see what the final number comes out at the bottom is how 

much it costs to run the fleet for the year? That is what 

these numbers reflect. 

Q Okay. I think that answered my next question, 

which was how these were derived. 

A That's it. 

Q Were these analyses performed on a total system 

basis? 

A For the total Florida Power Corporation system, 

yes, ma'am. 

Q And did they assume the inclusion of future 

units to meet demand? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Do these analyses assume the cost for the 

Hines 2 site, the HEC site actually is sunk and is not 

included in these? 

A I will have to check on that, ma'am. I would - -  

mything I would say would be speculation on that part. 

Let me find out that. 

Q Okay. Would you agree that in the first five 

fears of these analyses the differences in revenue 

requirements between Hines 2 and Bidders A and B are less 

;han one-half percent in some of the years shown? 

A I would agree with that, and I would also - -  I 
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would like to state that in some cases one-half of 1 

percent can be 20 or $30 million over a two-year time 

frame up in the front of a contract. That is 20 or $30 

million that is very valuable to the ratepayer. 

Q I understand that. Do have you any concerns 

that the differences are so narrow? 

A We ran initial screenings, we also ran 

supplemental screenings to confirm and give us a sense of 

confidence in the results of both sets of runs. 

Q Okay. And could a slight change in fuel cost 

effect the cost-effectiveness of Hines 2 ?  

A Since these are baseline - -  It could change the 

cost-effectiveness of all of the - -  it could certainly 

change the cost-effectiveness of Bidder A compared to 

Hines. I think the change in a cost of a fuel or natural 

gas would affect both the units, I guess that is the point 

I'm trying to make. And the relative comparison would 

stay the same. 

Q Okay. Referring to Confidential Bates Number 6 ,  

it is response to Interrogatory Number 21, Page 2 of 4, 

2nd I think since it refers to Panda we can talk about it, 

is that right, Ms. Brownless? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Anything having to do with Panda 

you are welcome to talk about in public. 

3Y MS. HART: 
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Q Are you with me? 

A Page 0 0 0 0 6 ?  

Q Right. 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Annual and cumulative revenue requirement for 

Panda? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Does this provide the system revenue 

requirements associated with Panda's proposal? 

A Yes, it does. 

Q Would you agree that the difference between the 

system revenue requirements for Hines 2 and Panda is less 

than 4/lOths of 1 percent over a 25-year horizon? 

A Where is the number for Hines 2? 

Q It's on Page 00030 we were open to a moment ago 

Df the confidential. Oh, excuse me, the nonconfidential. 

A If that is what $60 million is, yes. 

Q Given your experience in the electric industry, 

have you known of a fuel forecast to vary by more than 

4/10ths of a percent? 

A Fuel forecast - -  come again, please. 

Q Have you ever known of a fuel forecast to vary 

by more than 4/lOths of a percent? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Have you known of an electric generation 
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equipment price forecast to vary by more than 4/10ths of 1 

percent? 

A From what standpoint? As far as an estimate of 

construction cost, or what? 

Q Equipment price. 

A An equipment price? Yes, I have. But as far as 

the concern here, what you are talking about is a 

confirmed price from a contractor for an option. And what 

we are talking about here is a comparison of fuel costs. 

As I said before, if you have got two very, very similar 

heat rates, you are going to have the same impact to the 

two plants if fuel costs jump up. So that mitigates the 

effect of any changes in fuel forecast. If you are 

comparing Hines to Panda, fuel is almost a moot point. If 

you are comparing, a construction cost, the fact that we 

have a 2 5  to $30 million net benefit option compared to 

Panda is what makes up the significant difference here. 

Q Would you say that the comparison between these 

two analyses was the determining factor in determining 

that Hines 2 was more cost-effective? 

A In using both the PROSCREEN runs and the PROSYM 

runs were what led us to the conclusion that Hines 2 was 

the most cost-beneficial, cost-effective, and best 

performing of all of the different options. 

Q Did you assume in any of the analyses of Bidders 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



306 

1 

2 a 3 J 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

2 3  

24 

25 a 

A and B that Hines 2 would be constructed at a time later 

than November - -  not constructed, but on-line at a time 

later than November of 2003? 

A Well, in looking at the Panda option, yes. 

Q At what point? 

A As I stated before, if we were to go with the 

Panda option then what we would do is take the Panda 

option for two years and then Hines 2 would be constructed 

at the end of that along with another combined cycle 

simultaneously to handle our load growth. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Staff, are you at a break 

point? 

MS. HART: We are close to being done. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. You can finish. 

MS. HART: I would say ten minutes. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. 

3Y MS. HART: 

Q Referring to the Nonconfidential Exhibit Bates 

!Umber 00022, which is your response to Staff 

Interrogatory 22. Wrong page. 32, not 22. Bates Number 

32.  

A 

?age 32. 

I'm there. 

MS. BROWNLESS: On the nonconfidential one? 

M S .  HART: On the nonconfidential one. It is 
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THE WITNESS: Annual and cumulative revenue 

requirement for Hines 2? 

MS. HART: Right. 

THE WITNESS: Page 1 of 4. 

BY MS. HART: 

Q And then the corresponding one in the 

confidential exhibit is Bates Number 9. It is Page 3 of 

4, where we were just a moment ago. Not Panda, it is 

Bidder B. 

A I'm with you. 

Q Could you describe what information these two 

analyses provide? 

A The nonconfidential is a look at Hines 2, annual 

and cumulative revenue requirements, and it shows the 

overall impact of the production fleet of 16,721,956. On 

the confidential Bidder B analysis it shows without 

imputed debt a factor of 16,701,168. We have also proven 

that imputed debt throughout the course of the information 

that we have provided, that imputed debt is, in fact, an 

expense. So from a standpoint of looking at a table of 

iuithout imputed death versus Hines 2 which includes all of 

the debt structure that we are required to handle, this is 

sn apples to bananas comparison. A more appropriate 

clomparison might be to look at Hines 2 financed on a 100 

?ercent debt basis, in which Hines 2 would beat this by 
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approximately 50 to $60 million. 

Q Okay. And you talk about imputed debt in your 

confidential testimony at Page 13. Could you explain to 

me the impact that imputed debt has? 

A Yes, ma'am. Imputed debt is a penalty that goes 

to our off-balance sheet debt columns. And that penalty 

is associated with any contractual obligation. For 

instance, our UPS agreements, our QFs. All of those have 

an associated imputed debt penalty rated against them 

according to a factor, a penalty factor that is determined 

by Standard & Poors. That imputed debt affects our 

debt-to-equity ratio. And when it affects our 

debt-to-equity ratio, we have to take means to bring the 

debt-to-equity ratio back into line. That is where the 

impact is actually felt to the ratepayer. It costs the 

ratepayer that amount of penalty. 

Q Thank you. Talking about the bidding process, 

were you surprised that you only got two bids? 

A Disappointed somewhat, yes. But I had a few 

calls in from some folks that I used to work with back in 

the past out in the unregulated side. And they said, 

"Ben, you got a great project. Good luck, and I hope we 

can do business next time. 

Q Did anybody talk about the Duke decision that 

was pending at the time and whether that was having any 
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impact on them? 

A No. Because this was very much a firm fixed - -  

we were looking for contract options, and it really was - -  

we, from our standpoint, had set the whole Duke issue 

aside because it was a legal and regulatory issue. We 

were looking at this purely from somebody give us the best 

possible option you can. Beat Hines if you can. Come on, 

bring it on, and we will take the best possible solution. 

Q Did you consider rebidding it when you only got 

two bids? 

A No, we did not because of the feedback that we 

received from some of the other bidders. The fact is that 

the Hines 2 option priced those folks - -  they determined 

that they could take their plants and their plants 

options, their combined cycle options and go elsewhere in 

the nation and, in fact, make more money. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: If you can say so - -  well, 

we have touched on this before in a line of questioning, 

but was there any particular factor that stood out - -  and 

I know you talked about the idea of the site being 

already certified, and you talked about the idea - -  we 

have talked about the idea of the favorable terms you had 

on the equipment. Can you point to a factor that really 

stood out in terms of shifting the economics to your 

favor? 
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THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. And to do this I've got 

to refer on past job experience. When an IPP or a 

merchant looks to propose a bid, they look at two things. 

They look at, okay, how much do I have to go underneath 

this cost of this Hines unit to win the bid; and then they 

look at how much - -  where is the market at. Because they 

know they can get that market line. So if the cost to 

beat Hines is so great it takes away their incentive, 

their profit incentive, that was one of the things that 

was referred to me as a major criterion in the IPPs and 

merchants not moving forward. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. Thank you. 

MS. HART: That's all the questions I have at 

this point. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. Can we hold 

redirect until the morning unless it real brief? 

MR. SASSO: No, we will need some time. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I thought SO.  

MS. HART: Do we want to go ahead and move the 

exhibits? 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Yes. Well, we can do it 

now or in the morning. It doesn't matter. If you would 

like to - -  

MS. HART: Let's do it now. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Okay. I have Exhibit 5 is 
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your exhibit. 

MR. SASSO: That's correct. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Without objection, show 

Exhibit 5 admitted. 

(Exhibit 5 admitted into the record.) 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Exhibit 6 is staff's 

exhibit, and you wanted to move that? 

MS. HART: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Without objection, show 

Exhibit 6 admitted. 

(Exhibit 6 admitted into the record.) 

MS. HART: And also move Exhibit 10. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: And without objection show 

Exhibit 10 admitted. 

(Exhibit 10 admitted into the record.) 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: And you may have 

requested, but I didn't note it, but just to be certain 

Exhibit 4, the affidavit, let's show that admitted. And 

de have already admitted 7 and 8, which were Panda's 

3xhibits. 

MS. HART: Right. 

(Exhibit 4 admitted into evidence.) 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: Very well. That being 

;he case, we will adjourn. We will begin at 8:30 in 

:he morning and we will go until we finish. See you 
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then. 

folders. 

MS. HART: We need to collect all the red 

(The hearing adjourned at 6 : 2 0  p . m . )  
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